Cathrin ZEPPEK, BSc

Synthesis and Characterization of Novel Aryltin Trichlorides -

and Trihydrides:

Precursors for Polyarylstannanes

Master Thesis

Thesis Submitted to the Faculty of Chemistry, Chemical- and Process Engineering in Partial Fulfillment of Requirements for the Degree of

Master of Science

in Chemistry at the University of Technology Graz

Supervisor: Univ.- Prof. Dipl.-Chem. Dr. rer. nat. Frank Uhlig Department of Inorganic Chemistry University of Technology Graz Dedicated to my Parents

Wir konstruieren und konstruieren. Dabei ist Intuition noch immer eine gute Sache.

(Paul Klee)

Danksagung

Hiermit will ich die Chance ergreifen, all jenen Menschen Danke zu sagen, die für das erfolgreiche Zustandekommen dieser Arbeit einen essentiellen Beitrag lieferten und deren Unterstützung maßgeblich zum Gelingen beigetragen hat.

Mein primärer Dank geht an meinen Betreuer Frank Uhlig, der mir die Möglichkeit gab diese Masterarbeit in seiner Arbeitsgruppe verfassen zu können und mir hierbei mit professionellen, fachlichen Ratschlägen, aber auch durch optimistischen und motivierenden Zuspruch zur Seite stand.

Natürlich geht mein Dank auch an alle Mitglieder der AG Uhlig, die durch das angenehme Arbeitsklima, ihre Hilfsbereitschaft und den Wissensaustausch viel zum erfolgreichen Heranwachsen dieser Arbeit beigetragen haben. Hierbei soll aber ein ganz spezieller Dank meiner Arbeitskollegin und Freundin Kristina Schrempf zukommen, die durch ihre die Freundschaft, Menschlichkeit und Unterstützung die letzten Monate zu etwas ganz Besonderem für mich gemacht hat. También, me gustaría darle las gracias a Ana Torvisco por su ayuda profesional y su paciencia. Con todo esto mi trabajo ha sido más completo.

Jedoch gilt mein größter Dank meinen Eltern Carmen und Edmund Zeppek, die mir die Möglichkeit gaben dieses Studium zu beginnen und mich fortwährend nicht nur finanziell, sondern auch emotional unterstützten. Ebenso möchte ich mich bei zwei sehr besonderen Menschen in meinem Leben bedanken. Einerseits bei Bartholomäus Pieber für die immerwährende, liebevolle und aufbauende Unterstützung in den letzten Jahren und andererseits bei Eva Fischereder, für ihre Freundschaft und den Zusammenhalt, welche mein Leben bereichern. Ihr beide helft mir den Blick auf die wesentlichen Dinge nicht zu verlieren.

Weiters will ich auch all meinen Studienkollegen danken durch deren Zutun und Wissensaustausch der erfolgreiche Abschluss dieses Studiums erst möglich wurde. Sie machten die Studienzeit zu einem wunderbaren Lebensabschnitt.

iv

Abstract

This works deals with the synthesis and characterization of novel aryl trichloro- and trihydridostannanes and initial polymerization attempts of the latter in the presence of TMEDA *via* dehydrogenative coupling.

Various *ortho*-substituted aryl trichlorostannanes were synthesized (*o*-tolyl, 2,4-xylyl, 2,6-xylyl, 1-naphthyl) by standard preparation protocols serving as starting materials for the generation of the corresponding tin trihydrides (see scheme below).



The polymerization behavior of the hitherto undisclosed aryl trihydridostannanes was investigated. Dehydrogenative coupling led to a black, amorphous solid, which was insoluble in common organic solvents. Elemental analysis as well as EDX measurements displayed a carbon/ hydrogen/ tin ratio which suggested a polymer composition of $(R_{0.95}Sn)_x$. However, further investigations concerning the polymer properties have to be carried out.

Kurzzusammenfassung

Die vorliegende Arbeit beschäftigt sich mit der Synthese und Charakterisierung von neuartigen Aryltrichlor- und trihydridostannanen, wobei zweitere ersten Polymerisationsversuchen mit TMEDA in Form einer dehydrogenierenden Kupplung unterzogen wurden.

Die Synthese von in mindestens *ortho*-Position des aromatischen Rings substituierten Aryltrichlorstannanen (*o*-tolyl, 2,4-xylyl, 2,6-xylyl, 1-naphthyl) erfolgt nach Standardmethoden. Diese fungierten in weiterer Folge als Ausgangsmaterial für die Herstellung der Zinntrihydride (siehe Reaktionsschema).



Weiters wurden Untersuchungen über das Polymerisationsverhalten der bisher literaturunbekannten Zinntrihydride angestellt. Dehydrogenierende Kupplung führte zur Bildung von schwarzen, amorphen Feststoffen, die in gängigen organischen Lösungsmitteln unlöslich waren. Elementaranalyse und EDX-Messungen zeigten ein Kohlenstoff-/ Wasserstoff-/ Zinnverhältnis, welches eine Polymerzusammensetzung von (R_{0.95}Sn)_x vermuten ließ. Weitere Untersuchungen bezüglich der Polymereigenschaften sollen im Fokus zukünftiger Forschung liegen.

vi

Table of Contents

1	Intro	oduction1				
2	Liter	rature Overview				
	2.1 Tin in a General Approach: Sources, Industrial Production, Application		2			
	2.2	Toxicity of Organotin Compounds	4			
	2.3 2.3.1 2.3.2 2.3.3 2.3.4 2.3.5	The History of Organotin Compounds Tetra Organostannanes R₄Sn Monoorganotin trihalides RSnX₃ Organotin Hydrides R₅nSnH₄ Properties of Organotin Hydrides Polystannanes	6 9 13 15 16 23			
2	Z.T Posu	Its and Discussion	23			
5	3.1	Objective of the Project	29 29			
	3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.3	Synthesis of Tetraaryl Stannanes Tetra-o-Tolylstannane 1 Tetra-2,4-Xylylstannane 2 Tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane 3	30 30 31 32			
	3.3 3.3.1 3.3.2 3.3.3 3.3.4 3.3.5	Synthesis of Trichloro Arylstannanes Trichloro- <i>o</i> -tolylstannane 4 Trichloro-2,4-xylylstannane 5 Trichloro-2,6-xylylstannane 6 Trichloro-1-naphthylstannane 8 and Tetra-1-naphthylstannane 7 9-Anthracenyl Systems	34 34 35 36 39			
	3.4 3.4.1	Synthesis of Triarylstannanes Tri-2,6-xylylstannane 10	47 47			
	3.5	Comparison of Crystal Structures	49			
	3.6 3.7 3.8	Polymerization Attempts Comparison of ¹¹⁹ Sn-NMR Data of Ar ₄ Sn, Ar ₃ SnX, Ar ₂ SnCl ₂ , ArSnCl ₃ , Ar ₃ SnH and ArSnH ₃	52 53 55			
	3.9	Conclusion and Outlook	57			
	3.10	References	58			
4	Expe	erimental Section	60			
	4.1 4.1.1	General and Used Chemicals Chemicals Used in Synthesis	60 60			
	4.2 4.2.1 4.2.2 4.2.3 4.2.4 4.2.5 4.2.6	Analytics NMR-Spectroscopy Elemental Analysis X-Ray Analysis ICP-AES Measurements SEM and EDX Measurments Melting Point Measurement	60 61 61 61 61 61 62			

	4.2.7	ATR Measurments	62
	4.2.8	MS-Measurements	62
	4.2.9	TGA and DTA Measurements	62
	4.3	Synthesis	. 62
	4.4	References	. 81
5	Арр	endix	. 82
	5.1	Abbreviations	82
	5.2	Chemical Short Names	. 83
	5.3	Crystal Structure Analysis Data	85
	5.4	Indices	88
	5.4.1	Index of Tables	88
	5.4.2	Index of Schemes	89
	5.4.3	Index of Figures	90

1 Introduction

Since the Bronze Age (3500 BC), which was one of the milestones in the evolution of mankind, tin has been a highly appreciated metal and raw material for further processing. But when Frankland^{1,2} first described the successful synthesis of an organotin compound shortly after Cadet³ and Zeise⁴ had been established as the pioneers in metallorganic chemistry, much attention had been drawn to the organic derivatives of tin, especially to tetra coordinated ones. More advanced analytical techniques including Sn-NMR, X-ray diffraction or appropriate computational methods were implemented helping organotin chemistry to be a growing field of interest. Besides being used as fungicides, insecticides or stabilizers in PVC, organostannanes are currently widely used in chemical synthesis. They exhibit dominance in many homolytic mechanisms, where in particular, organotin hydrides are the main used agents for performing ring-closing cyclizations. Nevertheless, due to the acute toxicity of organo substituted tin compounds their use in synthetic chemistry was conotated quite negatively.

Apart from the afore mentioned use of tinhydrides, they have been investigated as monomers for polystannane synthesis in order to generate materials harboring outstanding electronic properties related to their metallic "tin-wire backbone". Only a limited knowledge is available about the polymerization of dialkyl as well as diaryltin dihydrides. The synthesis of higher hydride functionalized derivates (tin trihydrides), as well as investigations on their polymerization behaviour has been neglected.

The focus of this work lies on the synthesis and characterization of novel organotin trihydrides (Scheme below) as well as their intial polymerization attempts in the presence of TMEDA.



R'= H, organic molety

2 Literature Overview

2.1 Tin in a General Approach: Sources, Industrial Production, Application

As already mentioned before, Sn and its ubiquitous uses have been known and appreciated since its discovery in about 3500 BC. The major source of Sn can be found in the earth's crust with an abundance of 2 ppm, which in comparison to Zn, Pb or Cu is scarce. In order to gain Sn in its elementary form the, preferred extraction technique is the reduction of cassiterite (SnO_2) using carbon monoxide or carbon as a reducing agent at elevated temperatures as shown below (Scheme 1).^{5,6}

SnO ₂	+	2 CO	>	Sn	+	2	co2
SnO ₂	+	2 C	>	Sn	+	2	со
Scheme 1: Preparation of metallic tin from cassiterite							

Apart from being generated from natural sources, tin is also recycled from used food and drink cans. As major tin producing countries, China and Indonesia can be mentioned. Table 1 shows the tin production and reserves in the year 2009 and 2010 worldwide.

Table 1: Worldwide production of tin ⁷					
	mine proc	mine production [t]			
	2009	2010			
United States	0	0	0		
Australia	1400	2000	180000		
Bolivia	19000	16000	400000		
Brazil	13000	12000	590000		
China	115000	115000	1500000		
Congo (Kinshasa)	9400	9000	NA		
Indonesia	55000	60000	800000		
Malaysia	2380	2000	250000		
Peru	37500	38000	710000		
Portugal	30	100	70000		
Russia	1200	1000	350000		
Thailand	120	100	170000		
Vietnam	3599	3500	NA		
other countries	2000	200	180000		
world total	260000	261000	5200000		

Approximately 50% of the produced tin is used as solderin material, which can be explained by the high demand in the production of the growing field of telecommunication devices. Herein, tin exchanges the heavy use of its toxic homologue, lead. About 20% of the production belongs to the generation of tinplates, which before were used intensively for the fabrication of cans. Only about 14% of the tin occurrence is used for the elaboration of basic chemicals subjected to further chemical conversion. In addition, occurrence of tin in glass and brass and bronze makes up 2 and 6% respectively.

Table 2 illustrates the use of organotin compounds in industrial applications.⁸

Table 2: Industrial applications of organotin compounds						
industrial application	function	ОТС				
PVC stabilizer	stabilization against decomposition by heat and light	$R_2 Sn X_2$ and $R Sn X_3$				
antifouling paints	biocide	R=Me, Bu, Oct				
		R₃SnX				
Agrochemicals	fungicide, instecticide, miticide, antifeedant	R=Bu, Ph				
		R ₃ SnX, , RSnX ₃ R=Me,Bu				
wood preservation, glass treatment	precursors for tin (IV) oxide films on glass	Me_2SnX_2				
materials protection (stone leather, paper)	fungicide, algicide, bactericide,	Bu₃SnX				
impregnation of textile	insecticide, antifeedent	Ph₃SnX				
poultry farming	dewormer	Bu_2SnX_2				

Interestingly, tin in its metal form and its metallorganic derivatives exhibit a wide range of different and important applications including as stabilizers, industrial catalysts, industrial and agricultural biocides, fungicides, wood-preserving and anti-fouling agents, surface disinfectants, slimicides, laundry sanitizers or hospital and veterinary disinfectants.^{9,10}

3

2.2 Toxicity of Organotin Compounds

Due to the increased production of tin organometallic derivatives for commercial uses during the last 50 years, concerns regarding their toxicity have become prevalent specifically regarding the penetration of worldwide ecosystems and their persistence in the latter. Currently, a wide span of different organotin compounds is known and aside from methyltins, which are generated during biomethylation, these do not stem from anthropogenic origin.¹¹ While tin in its metal form is not considered to exhibit harmful effects on the environment the toxicological aspect of their organic derivatives is quite complex.⁸ Since the biocidal properties of the latter were described in detail by van der Kerk and Luijten^{12,13} in the late 1950s it is known that derivatives of R₃SnX, the trialkyl, -triaryl tin hydroxides and tin salts harbor the highest fungitoxicity. The toxicity only depends on R (hydrocarbon radical residue) and not on X, as long as X itself is not a toxic compound.

Hence, the biological effects strongly depend on both, the nature and the size of the organic moiety, resulting in a more or less cationic tin species, which is indeed highly toxic. Therefore, the maximum toxicity level is reached regarding trisubstituted compounds $R_n SnX_{4-n}$.⁸ So the toxicity towards organisms decreases as followes: $R_3SnX > R_2SnX_2 > RSnX_3$.¹⁴ However, according to Smith, triethyltin acetate can be seen as the most toxic organostannane for mammals, with an LD₅₀ value of 4mg/kg in rats.¹⁵

Much attention has been drawn to the extended toxicity of TBT (tributyltin hydride) as a water pollutant, as well as contaminating sediments, because of its harmful effect on the aquatic life and terrestrial ecosystems.¹⁶ But also bioaccumulation and persistence in the environment is one major criterion regarding the toxicity of organstannanes due to their lipophility.¹⁷ Apart from bioaccumulation, the persistence of organotin compounds, especially regarding butyltins is an environmental issue.¹⁸

Figure 1 illustrates the distribution and fate of those environmental contaminants.

4



Figure 1: Distribution and fate of OTC as pollutants in the aquatic environment ⁸

2.3 The History of Organotin Compounds

Organotin compounds or organostannanes are chemical compounds containing at least one Sn-C bond. The first organotin compound described in literature was published by Frankland more than 160 years ago synthesized by heating up ethyl iodide in the presence of metallic tin leading to a yellow oily fluid (Scheme 2).^{1,2}



Scheme 2: Synthesis of the first organo stannane (direct method)

Subsequently, Buckton¹⁹ generated tetraethyltin on the so-called indirect route, in comparison to Scheme 2, by treating tin(IV) chloride with diethylzinc (Scheme 3).

2 $Et_2Zn + SnCl_4 \longrightarrow Et_4Sn + 2 ZnCl_2$

Scheme 3: First indirect method synthesizing tetraalkyl stannanes

Replacement of tin(IV) chloride tin(II) chloride improved the indirect route due to easier handling of the starting material and reaction ongoing in a more controllable fashion (Scheme 4).

2
$$Et_2Zn + SnCl_2 \longrightarrow Et_4Sn + ZnCl_2 + Zn$$

Scheme 4: Improvement of the indirect route by Frankland

With the discovery of organomagnesium halides in ether solution, by Grignard in 1900 the synthetic scope for organostannanes was widely broadened. Pope and Peachey²⁰ showed an improved application for Grignard reagents realizing the formation of several simple and mixed tetraalkyl tin derivatives and Pfeiffer *et al.* generated arylstannanes.^{21,22}

2.3.1 Tetra Organostannanes R₄Sn

The most known and used protocol for generating tetra organostannanes is the reaction of the appropriate Grignard reagent RMgX or the organolithium compound with a tin halide, in most cases tin(IV) chloride (Scheme 5).²³⁻³⁴ Usually the used solvent is ether, dibutyl ether or tetrahydrofuran.



By using an excess of the Grignard reagent the reaction is driven to full conversion but might contain R₃SnX as a side product. Hence, using the Grignard route, tetravinyl³⁵, tetrallyl³⁶⁻³⁸, tetraalkyl²⁷⁻³³ and tetraaryl stannanes^{22,39-42} are easily prepared up to 90% yield and higher. An interesting procedure was described by Kipping and Smith generating tetra organostannanes without preparation of the Grignard reagent, adding the organic halide to magnesium powder and tin(IV) chloride in ether.⁴³ This reaction procedure was further discussed in the literature, whereby ether frequently was replaced by hydrocarbon solvents.⁴⁴⁻⁴⁷

For tetraalkyl organostannanes with alkyl moieties longer than C₄, the Grignard way might not be the reaction pathway of choice concerning the yields. In that case, a Wurtz-type

coupling reaction of SnCl₄ with a sodium-tin alloy in a hydrocarbon solvent is more successful as shown by van der Kerk and Luijten, generating the butyl derivative in relatively high yields, but with difficult to control reaction conditions and distannanes as side products (Scheme 6).^{48,49}

 $SnX_4 + 4 BuX + 8 Na \longrightarrow R_4Sn + 8 NaX$

Scheme 6: Wurtz-type coupling generating tetraalkyl organostannanes

Lithiation of the organohalide and treatment with SnX_4 turned out to be a suitable route for tetraarylstannanes²³ and Me₄Sn⁵⁰. However, product yields for this approach can be declared as rather low due to distannane formation as a side reaction. Concerning the preparation of tetraaryltins, diarylzinc reagents have proven to be more successful, since in this transarylation reaction no formation of distannanes can be detected and therefore diphenylzinc results in Ph₄Sn in higher than 90% yield (Scheme 7).⁵¹

2 R_2Zn + SnX_4 \longrightarrow R_4Sn + 2 ZnX_2 Scheme 7: Preparation of tetraorgano stannanes using diorgano zinc reagents

Also, by employing triorganoaluminium reagents, distannane formation can be avoided (Scheme 8).^{52,53} Today R₃Al in generally is used in the industrial preparation of tetraalkyltins.

4 R_3AI + 3 SnX_4 \longrightarrow 3 R_4Sn + 2 AIX_3

Scheme 8: Preparation of tetraorgano stannanes using triorgano aluminium reagents

Carrying out the reaction using stoichometric amounts of $SnCl_4$ and R_3Al the tetraaryl compound is only obtained with about 10% yield, while the remaining product can be assigned as stable complexes $R_2SnCl_2(AlCl_3)$, $R_3SnCl(AlCl_3)$. Hence, an excess of R_3Al is necessary to gain complete alkylation. To overcome this disadvantage, Sundermeyer and Verbeek introduced a modified method of preparing the alkylating agent $Na[AlMeCl_3]$ in one step, which then reacts in a quantitative way with $SnCl_4$ to afford $SnMe_4$ with 95% yield.⁵⁴

All so far mentioned techniques can be performed with the use of SnCl₄, whereas organotin halides can be applied as described by Sisido and Kozima (Scheme 9).⁵⁵

 $n-Bu_2SnCl_2 \xrightarrow{Zn, Et_3N} n-Bu_4Sn + n-Bu_3SnCl$ Scheme 9: Generating R₄Sn by reduction of the dichloride with a metal

Alternatively, a trialkyl or triaryltin hydride can be transformed into a nucleophile by deprotonation with a strong base, e.g. LDA generating an anionic tin species which further displaces halides to afford tetraalkyl tins (scheme 11).⁵⁶⁻⁵⁸

 $R_{3}^{1}SnH \longrightarrow R_{3}^{1}SnLi \longrightarrow R_{3}^{1}SnR^{2}$

Scheme 11: Nucleophilic attack of a deprotonated tin species generating tetraorgano stannanes

Competition between an $S_N 2$ mechanism and radical processes are considered to be responsible for complete inversion of the configuration using Ph_3SnM as an educt as illustrated in scheme 12. Not limited to halides, also the well known leaving group tosylate is displaced under full inversion (Scheme 13). However, leaving groups other than Tos and halides have found limited use.



Scheme 12: Displacement of a halide with Me₃SnLi under full inversion



Scheme 13: Displacement of a tosylate with Me₃SnLi under full inversion

More recently, in 2006 Shaikh *et al.* discovered that the traditional known Ulmann coupling reaction conditions can be modified by not just using copper but an activated copper bronze (9:1 mixture of copper and tin) in order to obtain tetraaryl stannanes along the production of substituted biaryls.⁵⁹



Scheme 16: Ulmann coupling using copper bronze generating tetraaryl stannanes

Regarding this work, tetraorgano stannanes are important precursor for the synthesis of $RSnX_3$ compounds (see chapter 2.3.2).

2.3.2 Monoorganotin trihalides RSnX₃

Among the organotin halides, the compounds $RSnX_3$ tend to undergo a second substitution, so methods using $SnCl_4$ with an organometallic reagent like RMgX or RLi are not ideal.

However, Kozeschkow described one of the first methods for successful preparation of RSnX₃ compounds in the 1930s starting from the corresponding tetraaryl stannane subjecting it to a redistribution reaction with a tin tetrahalide at elevated temperatures without the use of solvents.⁶⁰⁻⁶³ Scheme 17 shows the overall reaction, which in fact consists of three consecutive redistribution reactions including R₂SnX₂ as an intermediate (Scheme 18).





However, this reaction sequence is limited to the R-moieties like vinyl^{64,35}, phenyl^{65,66}, mesityl⁶⁷, allyl³⁶⁻³⁸ and acryl⁶⁸ esters, because the third redistribution reaction fails using alkyl substituents. For that reason monoalkyltin halides are generated using a modification of the latter, affording R₂SnX₂ and the desired product RSnX₃ in an one to two ratio (Scheme 19).

 $R_4Sn + 2 SnX_4 \xrightarrow{neat} R_2SnX_2 + 2 RSnX_3$

Scheme 19: Preparation of monoalkyl tinhalides via Kozeschkow redistribution reaction

Applying a related distribution reaction where Me_2SnCl_2 is treated with $SbCl_5$, $MeSnCl_3$ can be generated. However, it was found out that for R=Ph $SbCl_5$ is too strong Lewis acid, so that the phenyl group is more likely to be transferred from the tin to the antimony to resulting in Ph₂SbCl₃. This disadvantage can be avoided by using a less strong acid like BCl₃ (Scheme 20).⁶⁹



As already reported in chapter 2.3.1, the synthesis of R_4Sn compounds can be achieved by using aluminium trialkyls to substitute the $SnCl_4$. Müller and Buschhoff⁷⁰ described that R_3Al also displays a convenient agent for the monoalkylation of $SnCl_4$. In order to minimize the alkylating effect of the aluminum reagent, an ether or tertiary amine complex is build up which subsequently reacts with $SnCl_4$ yielding in $RSnCl_3$ (R=n-butyl or octyl) up to 90% (Scheme 21).

3 $SnX_4 + R_3Al(OR'_2)/R_3Al(NR'_3) \longrightarrow$ 3 $RSnCl_3 + AlCl_3(OR_2)/AlCl_3(NR'_3)$ Scheme 21: Monoalkylation of tin(IV) chloride using R_3Al complexes

In this manner alkyltrichloro stananes like R = n-butyl or octyl can be synthesized in yields up to 90%.

In comparison to the less selective organolithium and Grignard reagents, mesitylcopper $[CuMes]_5(toluene)$, described by Jäkle and Manners, easily and selectively reacts with SnCl₄ resulting in MesSnCl₃ with 92% yield.⁷¹

Furthermore, an oxidative addition of a tin(II) halide provides a convenient and selective one-step method preparing monoorganotin trihalides (Scheme 22).

 $SnX_2 + RX \longrightarrow RSnX_3$

Scheme 22: Preparation of RSnX₃ via oxidative addition

Janiak and Schwichtenberger⁷² described the selective addition using pentaphenylcyclopentadienyl as an organic substituent, but in other cases the reaction does not proceed selectively. For that reason, catalysts like primary amines, organic disulfides, quarternary ammonium halides, and trialkylantimony have to be applied to obtain reasonable yields of RSnCl₃.⁷³

The Grignard route was used by Elhamzaoui to prepare an arylmagnesium bromide which was then treated with trimethyl tinchloride to obtain a mixed tetraorgano stannane. Since alkyl groups are more likely to be exchanged, further conversion with SnCl₄ leads to the corresponding aryltrichloro stannane (Scheme 23).⁷⁴

ArBr \xrightarrow{Mg} ArMgBr $\xrightarrow{Me_3SnCl}$ ArSnMe₃ $\xrightarrow{SnCl_4}$ ArSnCl₃ Scheme 23: Synthesis of ArSnCl₃ on the Grignard route *via* ArSnMe₃ as an intermediate Moreover, Matsuda and co-workers published a protocol generating Me_3SnCl by reacting MeCl and $SnCl_2$ in the presence of a small amount of I_2 and magnesium in 95% yield (Scheme 24).⁷⁵

SnCl₂ + MeCl → MeSnCl₃

Scheme 24: Oxidative addition of tin(II) chloride in the presence of iodide and magnesium

Lazarev reported the selective cleavage of a Si-C induced by $SnCl_4$ affording the corresponding ArSnCl₃ compound (Scheme 25).⁷⁶



Scheme 25: Selective cleavage of a Si-C bond with SnCl₄

An additional interesting route for the preparation of aryltrichloro stannanes is the *in-situ* generation of a chlorostannylene by treating the lithiated arylcompound with tin(II) chloride and subsequent reduction with CCl_4 as illustrated in Scheme 26. Saito described the reaction for R= terphenyl with a yield of 45%.⁷⁷



Scheme 26: Generating ArSnCl₃ via a tin(II) intermediate

2.3.3 Organotin Hydrides R_nSnH_x

Hydrides of the elements in the group 14 become increasingly unstable the heavier the homologue becomes. Organotin hydrides are organic derivatives of stannane, in which at least one hydrogen is replaced by an organic group. By increasing substitution of a hydrogen by an organic moiety, stability is greatly improved.

Although Paneth⁷⁸ was first in describing stannane SnH₄, as well as taking into account the investigation on elements of group 14 generating hydrides in 1920, the preparation of organic derivatives received little attention. Subsequently, Kraus and Greer⁷⁹ published in 1922 the first synthesis of trimethyl stannane and described its properties. They isolated the tinhydride by treating organotin sodium with ammonium chloride or bromide in liquid ammonia as shown in Scheme 27.



In this manner the afore mentioned trimethyltin hydride as well as triphenyltin hydride^{51,80} and dimetyhlethyltin hydride⁸¹ were generated. Afterwards, the investigation on tin hydrides was quite neglected due to the difficult preparation method leading to less accessible compounds because of their instability, until 1947, when Finholt, Bond and Schlesinger⁸² developed a novel and more convenient route generating tinhydrides. This method involves the reduction of the corresponding tin halide with lithium aluminium hydride in solvents like ether, dioxane or THF. Furthermore, the reaction proceeds smoothly, usually at room temperature producing products of high purity (Scheme 28).



Subsequently, Gilman and Eisch employed this procedure to synthesize triphenyltin hydride.⁸³ Various other novel tinhydrides were first mentioned by van der Kerk, Noltes and Luijten by slight modifications to the isolation procedure.⁶⁴ Until 1963, triphenyltin hydride

was the only known tin hydride harbouring an aryl group. Afterwards also following aryltin hydrides also were generated using the LiAlH₄ method: tris(*p*-tolyl), tris(*p*-fluorophenyl), trismesityl tin hydrides ⁸⁴ and tris(*m*-tolyl), tris(*o*-tolyl) and tris(*o*-biphenylyl)tin hydrides.⁸⁵ Lithium aluminium hydride also reduces bis(tri-*n*-butyl)oxide to yield in tri-*n*-butyltin hydride in 88% yield.⁸⁶

In 1955, Ziegler and Gellert reported the synthesis of organotin hydrides at -20 to 0°C in good yields utilizing dialkylaluminium hydrides like DIBAL. Hereby, solvents can be neglected (Scheme 29).^{87,88}

 $R_{4-n}SnX_n + n R'_2AIH \longrightarrow R_{4-n}SnH_n + n R'_2AICI$ Scheme 29: Preparation of organotin hydrides using dialkylaluminium hydrides

Furthermore, di-*n*-butylaluminium hydride transforms diethylamino stannanes into the corresponding hydrides as shown in Scheme 30.⁸⁹

```
R_{4-n}Sn[N(C_2H_5)_2]_n + n (n-C_4H_9)_2AIH \longrightarrow R_{4-n}SnH_n + n (n-C_4H_9)_2AIN(C_2H_5)_2
Scheme 30: Synthesis of organotin hydrides via reduction of diethylamino stannanes
```

Van der Kerk, Noltes and Luijten also reported that organotin halides can be reduced in good yields with amalgamated aluminium and water, but yields were not satisfactory.⁹⁰

As another route the hydrolysis of for instance (triphenyltin)magnesium in a THF solution, itself generated by reaction of triphenyltin chloride with magnesium using ethyl bromide as initiator, with aqueous ammonium chloride yielding in 82% triphenyltin hydride can be mentioned (Scheme 31).⁹¹

2 $(C_6H_5)_3$ SnCl + Mg $\xrightarrow{\text{THF, EtBr}}$ $(C_6H_5)_3$ Sn-Sn $(C_6H_5)_3$ + MgCl₂ $(C_6H_5)_3$ Sn-Sn $(C_6H_5)_3$ + Mg $\xrightarrow{\text{THF, EtBr}}$ $[(C_6H_5)_3$ Sn]₂Mg $\xrightarrow{2H_2O}$ 2 $(C_6H_5)_3$ SnH + MgOH₂ Scheme 31: Hydrolysis of triphenylmagnesium resulting in Ph₃SnH In comparison to the latter method, the hydrolysis of triphenyltinlithium with 1 *M* hydrochloric acid affords 69% of the corresponding hydride⁹² and hydrolysis of tri-*n*-butyllithium using water results in 54% yield of the hydride⁹³.

Finally, organotin hydrides in excellent yields can be obtained by the reaction of organotin methoxides with diborane (Scheme 32).⁹⁴

 $4/n R_{4-n}SnOCH_n + B_2H_6 \longrightarrow 4/n R_{4-n}SnH_n + 2 HB(OCH_3)_2$ Scheme 32: Generating organotin hydrides by reduction of organotin methoxides with diborane

2.3.4 Properties of Organotin Hydrides

With the exception of diphenyltin dihydride, tribenzyltin hydride and methyltin trihydride, all currently known tin hydrides are colourless, distillable liquids, which in function of the number of organic substituents, decompose very easily at room temperature under disproportion and formation of metallic tin as shown in the Scheme 33.²³ For alkyl compounds stability increases with the size of the substituent.⁹⁵



Scheme 33: Decomposition of organotin hydrides

Especially when exposed to atmospheric oxygen, organotin hydrides decompose resulting in a white to yellow or grey precipitate.^{83,96-98}

For example, triphenyltin hydride in the presence of oxygen gives hexaphenylditin,⁵¹ while ethyldimethyltin hydride and triethyltin hydride lead to the corresponding hydroxide shown in Scheme 34.^{82,97}

4 $Ph_3SnH + O_2 \longrightarrow 2 Ph_3Sn-SnPh_3 + 2 H_2O$ 2 $Ph_3SnH + O_2 \longrightarrow 2 R_3SnOH$

Scheme 34: Reaction of organotin hydrides with oxygen

2.3.5 Polystannanes

2.3.5.1 Polystannanes in General

Linear polystannes are compounds with the general formula (R₂Sn)_n, harboring a covalently linked metal (tin) backbone, which can be seen as a molecular metal wire embedded in an organic jacket.⁹⁹ At the same time, being the formally structural analogues of saturated polymeric hydrocarbons, the polymers of group 14 elements have the capacity to catenate.¹⁰⁰ Induced by a very low band gap as well as σ -conjugation between the Sn sp³ orbitals in the metallic backbone, these polymers exhibit an increased degree of electron delocalization with catenation.^{101,102} These compounds bear strong $\sigma \rightarrow \sigma^*$ transitions at about 390-340 nm. Even lower band gaps should be achieved if π -electrons in terms of covalently bond aromatic groups, can be found on the "tin-wire" leading as well to $\sigma \rightarrow \pi$ delocalization.¹⁰³ The mentioned outstanding property of a potentially highly conductive metallic material could be promising for applications in charge-transport, photoresists in microlithiography, non-linear optical materials, semiconductors in doping, and electronic devices.¹⁰⁴⁻¹⁰⁶ Furthermore, those electronic properties make them thinkable as one dimensional quantum wires in printed electronic applications.¹⁰⁷ Those features are highly dependent on the already mentioned σ -delocalization which is not only a function of the substituents attached to the main chain, but also depend upon the changes in solid-state structures, backbone conformation and chain length.

However, since 1992, only a few working groups have dedicated themselves successfully to the synthesis and characterization of polystannanes.

2.3.5.2 Synthesis of Polystannanes

Over the years different polymerization methods have been established in order to synthesize polystannanes, however, these are often accompanied with the formation of side products.

2.3.5.2.1 Wurtz-Type Coupling

The first described oligo- or polystannanes were published by Löwig in 1852. Shortly after, the first organotin compound was synthesized by Frankland^{1,2} generated *via* the reaction of Sn/K or Sn/Na alloys with iodoethane in the presence of quartz sand in order to improve the reaction control. However, it was found out that Sn/Na is more convenient for that preparation. The elemental composition of the afforded compounds were very similar to oligo(diethylstannane) or poly(diethylstannane).¹⁰⁸ Subsequently, Cahours isolated a compound with elemental composition corresponding to the formula (SnEt₂)_x generated by heating iodoethane in the presence of metallic tin and sodium. With those findings, Cahours was the pioneer in applying a Wurtz-type reaction for the preparation of polystannanes. He also tried to afford poly(dimethylstannane) by a Wurtz reaction, but was not able to prove his results^{109,110} until Price *et al.* confirmed that poly(dibutylstannane) synthesized *via* Wurtz coupling leads to a bimodal molar mass distribution.¹¹¹

Currently, Wurtz-type coupling with sodium in organic solvents like toluene is widely used to gain poly(dialkylstannanes)s of high molar mass. However, the reaction conditions lead to oligomeric stannanes or cyclic oligomers in poor yields.^{108,112-117} Scheme 35 displays the Wurtz-type coupling for the preparation of polystannanes.



Scheme 35: Wurtz-type coupling for the preparation of polystannanes

Mechanistic suggestions consider that polymerization (chain growth) occurs at the surface of metallic sodium followed by a second slower step of chain prolongation by condensation reactions.^{118,119}

Very recently, Caseri *et al.* proposed a modification of the traditional Wurtz-type polymerization method converting R₂SnCl₂ compounds with sodium in liquid ammonia, whereby polymers are generated either in an one-step polymerization using two equivalents of sodium or *via* a two-step proceeding with four equivalents. The reaction is very likely to proceed *via* stannide ions including a radical mechanism.¹²⁰

2.3.5.2.2 Electrochemical Synthesis

The electrochemical pathway for the reduction of diorganotin dihalides can be seen as a promising route for the synthesis of moderate molecular weight polymers in good as well as reproducible yields (Scheme 36).^{121,122}



Scheme 36: Electrochemical synthesis for polystannanes

Electrochemical conversions were performed in an one-compartement cell furnished with a platinum cathode and a silver anode using 1,2-dimethoxyethane as solvent and tetrabutylammonium chloride as supporting electrolyte. The reaction was carried out for Bu₂SnCl₂ as well as for Oct₂SnCl₂ yielding up to 56% of the corresponding polymer.¹²² Using R₃SnCl compounds as starting material, crosslinked polystannanes with a network-σ-conjugated systems were produced. However, the product still exhibited Sn-Cl groups after reaction completion, in addition the conversion proceeds under the formation of unknown fractions of cyclic oligomers.¹²³

2.3.5.2.3 Solvent- and Catalyst Free Dehydrogenation

Recently, Foucher *et al.* reported the successful preparation of oligo- and polystannanes *via* thermal hydrocoupling under inert conditions. *n*-Bu₂SnH₂ was heated for 6 h yielding in a hydride terminated distannane, cyclic species and a polymer. Generated polystannanes showed modest molecular weight and broad polydispersity.¹²⁴

2.3.5.2.4 Catalytic Dehydropolymerization

So far, the most common and widely applied method of generating organo polystannanes is the catalytic dehydrocoupling of tin hydrides with early transition metal complexes based on palladium, zirconium, rhodium, platinum or lanthanides (Scheme 37).^{104,115,125-132}



Scheme 37: Catalytic dehydropolymerization generating polystannanes

Initial polymerization attempts on this field in most cases led to a significant number of side products including cyclic oligomers or other impurities. More recently, investigations on using a Wilkison's catalyst [RhCl(PPh₃)₃] turned out to be very successful affording polyalkylstannanes in high yields (65-90%) without significant byproducts.^{100,126,133} This method allowed the systematic investigation on material properties without the disturbing influence of the side products. However, usage of the Wilkinson catalyst is not suitable for the two aromatic substituents on the tin educt. Recently a synthetic route applying lanthanide diamide based catalysts for the generation of polystannanes and distannanes was established.¹³³

2.3.5.2.5 Dehydrogenative Coupling Using an Amine Base

Adding a nitrogen base like pyridine to a tin hydride solution in order to afford the formation of a Sn-Sn bond was first described by Neumann¹³⁴ and successfully further applied by Davies and Mathiasch (Scheme 38).^{135,136}



Scheme 38: Dehydrogenative coupling using an amine base

Although further investigations on the reaction mechanisms have been neglected thus far, the reaction progress is considered to occur *via* either a polar process or a radical chain mechanism. It is indeed possible that the polar mechanism proceeds *via* the formation of a four-membered transition state as involving a R₃SnX species as shown in Scheme 39.^{137,138}



+ R₃SnH, -H₂

Scheme 39: Polar transitions state in dehydrogenative coupling

Regarding the radical formation pathway a R_3Sn radical would displace a hydrogen atom from another tin hydride resulting in a H· species which subsequently leads to the production of H₂ through abstracting a hydrogen from another tin centre.¹³⁶ Recently, Uhlig *et al.* described the application of TMEDA (tetramethylene diamine) as a convenient amine base generating poly(dialkylstannane)s as well as poly(diarylstannane)s. Also for this synthetical route a radical mechanism is considered but not proven by any experimental means yet.¹³⁹

2.3.5.3 Characteristics of Polystannanes

Much attention concerning the properties of polystannanes had been drawn to the visible spectroscopic properties, whereas the stability investigations had been quite neglected until Caseri *et al.* dedicated themselves to the topic.¹⁴⁰

2.3.5.3.1 Visible Properties of Polystannanes: Color and Absorption Maxima

Polystannes are reported to exhibit a characteristic yellow or orange-yellow color leading to absorption maxima in UV-vis spectra at around 375-410 nm which are attributed to $\sigma \rightarrow \sigma^*$ band-gap transitions.^{100,115,126,141} Long-chain polystannanes strongly absorb light in the UV, indicated by their high ε -values ranging from 4200 to 63000. Furthermore, those energies are independent of the polymer's phase, whether it is in solution or not.

2.3.5.3.2 Thermal Stability

Under common TGA conditions, i.e. heating rate of 10°C/min, thermal decomposition of poly(dialkylstannane)s, as well as for polystannanes with phenyl terminated alkly groups does not proceed below 200°C under inert conditions as well being exposed to the ambient.^{126,134} However, the maximum decomposition rate regarding poly(alkylstannane)s could be detected in the range of 250-300°C under nitrogen and 240-300°C under oxygen containing atmosphere, respectively. There was no general systematic trend detectable referring to the dependency of decomposition and chain length. Regardless, it is established that poly(diphenylstannane)s exhibit more stability than poly(dialkylstannane)s. Concerning copolymers of butyl and phenyl moieties, the aromatic substituent did not improve thermal stability increasingly as shown on the example of poly(dibutylstannane).¹²¹

2.3.5.3.3 Light Stability

Caseri *et al.* investigated the stability of polystannanes towards light under controlled exposure and compared results of the polymer in solution where a consistent illumination is more accessible then to the polymer in the solid state. The degradation process was monitored *via* NMR spectroscopy and GPC. A correlation between the length of the alkyl side groups and the stability of the polymer was not found, but indeed the used solvent exhibits a strong influence on the degradation rate. Hereby, chlorinated solvents as well as styrenes repressed the decomposition, whereas degradation proceeds rapidly in aromatic and aliphatic hydrocarbons.¹⁴¹ Very recently, it was found that poly(diarylstannen)s exhibit a higher stability towards light than poly(dialkylstannane)s in THF as well as in dichloromethane.¹⁴²

2.3.5.3.4 Processing and Orientation

Poly(dialklystannane)s (alkyl= butyl, octyl, dodecyl) were blended with ultrahigh molar mass polyethylene to afford blends containing typically about 10% or 25% w/w polystannane. The resulting blends were homogenous, but however opaque. Poly(alyklstannane)s exhibited liquid-crystalline behavior at room temperature or even below. Hence, their orientation was achieved by shearing on a glass slide at ambient temperature or even at 60°C. Furthermore, they could be grown out of solution onto a glass slide coated with a PTFE layer. Depending on the procedure the polystannane backbone is either oriented parallel or perpendicular, evidenced by UV-vis spectra using polarized light.¹⁴³

2.4 References

⁷ http://minerals.usgs.gov/minerals/pubs/mcs/2011/mcs2011.pdf, 18.4.2012, 15:00

⁸ Hoch, M., *Appl. Geochem.*, **2001**, *16*, 719.

¹¹ Guard, H. E., Cobet. A. B., Coleman, W. M., *Science*, **1981**, *213*, 770.

¹² Van der Kerk, G. J. M., Luijten, J. G. A., *J. Appl. Chem.*, **1954**, *4*, 314.

¹³ Van der Kerk, G. J. M., Luijten, J. G. A., *J. Appl. Chem.*, **1956**, *6*, 56.

¹⁴ Beraldo, H., de Lima, G. M., *Tin Chemistry. Fundamentals, Frontiers, and Applications*, Wiley & Sons, Ltd, **2008**, 443.

¹⁵ Smith, P. J., Luitjen, J. G. A., Klimmer, O. R., ITRI Publication, **1978**, *538*, Internation. Tin Research Inst. London.

¹⁷ Iwate, H., Tanabe, S., Mizuno, T., Tatsukawa, R., *Environ. Sci. Technol.*, **1995**, *29*, 2959.

¹ Frankland, E., *Liebigs Ann. Chem.*, **1849**, *71*, 171.

² Frankland, E., *Liebigs Ann. Chem.*, **1849**, *71*, 212.

³ Seyferth, D., *Organometallics*, **2001**, *20(8)*, 1488.

⁴ Zeise, W. C., Ann. Phys. (Poggendorff), **1827**, 2, 632.

⁵ Davies, A.G, *Tin Chemistry. Fundamentals, Frontiers, and Applications*, Wiley & Sons, Ltd, **2008**, 1.

⁶ Harrison, P.G, *Chemistry of tin 2nd edition*, Blackie Academic & Professional, **1998**, London, 1.

⁹ Van der Kerk, G. J. M., *Advances in Chemistry Series*, **1976**, *157* (Organotin Cmpd: New Appl., Symp., 1976), 1.

¹⁰ Mala, N., *Tin Chemistry. Fundamentals, Frontiers, and Applications*, Wiley & Sons, Ltd, **2008**, 413.

¹⁶ Chagot, D., Alzieu, C., Sanjuan, J., Grizel, H., Aquat. Living Resour., **1990**, *3*, 121.

¹⁸ Randal, L., Weber, J. H., *Sci. Total Environ.*, **1986**, *57*, 191.

¹⁹ Buckton, G.B., *Phil. Trans R. Soc. Lond.*, **1859**, *149*, 417.

²⁰ Pope, W.J., Peachey, S.J., *Proc. Chem. Soc.*, **1903**, *19*, 290.

²¹ Pfeiffer, P, Lenhardt, R., Luftensteiner, H., Prade, R., Schnurmann, K., Truskier, P., *Z. anorg. Chem.*, **1910**, *68*, 102.

²² Pfeiffer, P., Schnurmann, K., Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., **1904**, 37, 319.

²³ Ingham, R. K., Rosenberg, S. D., Gilman, H., Chem. Rev., **1960**, 60, 459.

- ²⁴ Edgell, W.F., Ward, C. H., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1954**, 76, 1169.
- ²⁵ Viajayaraghavan, K. V., J. Indian Chem. Soc., **1945**, 22, 135.
- ²⁶ Clark, H. C., Willis, C. J., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1960**, 82, 1888.
- ²⁷ Földesi, I., Acta Chim. Acad. Sci. Hung., **1965**, 45, 237.
- ²⁸ Zimmer, H., Gold, H., *Chem. Ber.*, **1956**, *89*, 712.
- ²⁹ Van der Kerk, G. J. M., Luijten, J. G. A., Org. Synth., **1956**, 36, 86.
- ³⁰ Saitow, A., Rochow, E. G., Seyerferth, D., J. Org. Chem., **1958**, 23, 116.
- ³¹ Solvay & Cie, Fr. Pat. 1449872, July 11, **1966**
- ³² Bogdanovic, D., Bons, P., Konstantinovic, S., Schwickardi, M., Westeppe, U., *Chem. Ber.*, **1993**, *126*, 1371.
- ³³ Natoli, J. G., M & T Chemicals Inc., Neth. Pat. 6507716, June 16, **1964**
- ³⁴ Cuthbertson, M. J., Wells, P. R., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1981**, *216*, 331.
- ³⁵ Rosenberg, S. D., Gibbons, A. J., Ramsden, H. E., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1957**, 79, 2137.
- ³⁶ Fishwick, M. Wallbridge, G. H., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1970**, *25*, 61.
- ³⁷ Naruta, Y., Nishigaichi, Y., Maruyama, K., *Tetrahedron*, **1989**, 45, 1067.
- ³⁸ Denmark, S. E., Wilson, T., Willson, T. M., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1988**, 110, 984.
- ³⁹ Ballczo, H., Schniffner, H., Z. Anal. Chem., **1956**, 152, 3.
- ⁴⁰ Schacht, W., Kaufmann, D., *Chem. Ber.*, **1987**, *120*, 1331.
- ⁴¹ Sharma, R. K., Sharma, C. P., Sharma, A., J. Indian Chem. Soc., **1987**, 64, 205.
- ⁴² Srivastava, T. N., Bhattacharya, S. N., *Z. Anorg. Allg. Chem.*, **1966**, *344*, 102.
- ⁴³ Smith, T. A., Kipping, F.S., *J. Chem. Soc.*, **1912**, *101*, 2553.
- ⁴⁴ Morris, H., Byerly, W, Selwood, P.W., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1942**, *64*, 1727.
- ⁴⁵ Quintin, C., *Chem. Abstracts*, **1932**, *50*, 8945.
- ⁴⁶ Ramsden, H. E., Davidson, H., *Chem. Abstracts*, **1954**, *48*, 10057.
- ⁴⁷ Ramsden, H. E., Gloskey, C. R., *Chem. Abstracts*, **1955**, *49*, 5512.
- ⁴⁸ Van der Kerk, G. J. M., Luijten, J. G. A., *J. Appl. Chem.*, **1954**, *4*, 301.
- ⁴⁹ Van der Kerk, G. J. M., Luijten, J. G. A., *J. Appl. Chem.*, **1957**, *7*, 369.
- ⁵⁰ Waters, D. N, Woodward, L. A., *Proc. R. Soc. Lond.*, **1958**, *Ser. A*, *246*, 119.
- ⁵¹ Chambers, R. F., Scherer, P. C., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1926**, 48, 1055.
- ⁵² Neumann, W. P., *Liebigs Ann. Chem.*, **1962**, *653*, 157.
- ⁵³ Takeda, Y., Okuyama, T., Fueno, T., Fukukawa, F., *Macromol. Chem.*, **1964**, 209.

- ⁵⁴ Sundermeyer, W, Veerbek, W., *Angew. Chem.*, **1966**, *78*, 107.
- ⁵⁵ Sisido, K., Kozima, S., J. Organomet. Chem., **1968**, *11*, 503.
- ⁵⁶ San Filippo, J., Silbermann, J., *J. Am. Chem. Soc.*, **1981**, *103*, 5588.
- ⁵⁷ Kitching, W., Olszowy, H., Waugh, J. Doddell, D., *J. Org. Chem.*, **1977**, *136*, C41.
- ⁵⁸ Koermer, G.S., Hall, M. L., Traylor, T. G., *J. Am. Chem. Soc.*, **1972**, *94*, 7205.
- ⁵⁹ Shaikh, N. S., Parkin, S, Lehmler, H., *J. Organometallics*, **2006**, *25*, 4207-4214.
- ⁶⁰ Kozeschkow, K. A., *Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges.*, **1929**, *4*, 996.
- ⁶¹ Kozeschkow, K.A., Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., **1933**, 66(11), 1661.
- ⁶² Kozeschkow, K. A., Nadj, M. M., Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., **1934**, *5*, 717.
- ⁶³ Neumann, W. P., Burkhardt, G., *Liebigs Ann. Chem.*, **1963**, *663*, 11.
- ⁶⁴ Seyferth, D., Stone, F. G. A., *J. Am. Chem. Soc.*, **1957**, *79*, 515.
- ⁶⁵ Gilmann, H., Gist, L. A., J. Org. Chem., **1957**, 22, 368.
- ⁶⁶ Zimmer, H., Sparmann, H.-W., *Chem. Ber.*, **1954**, *87*, 645.
- ⁶⁷ Brown, P., Mahon, M. F., Molloy, K. C., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1992**, *435*, 265.
- ⁶⁸ Burley, J. W. Germ Pat. 2702363, July 28, **1977.**
- ⁶⁹ Dillon, K. B., Hewitson, G. F., *Polyhedron*, **1984**, *3*, 957
- ⁷⁰ Buschhoff, M., Müller, K. H. US. Pat. 3894066, July 8, **1975**
- ⁷¹ Jäkle, F., Manners, I., *Organometallics*, **1999**, *18*, 2628
- ⁷² Janiak, C., Schwichtenberger, M., Hahn, E., J. Organomet. Chem., **1989**, 365, 37.
- ⁷³ Bulten, E. J., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1975**, *97*, 167.
- ⁷⁴ Elhamzaoui, H., Jousseaume, B., Toupance, T., Allouchi, H., *Organometallics*, **2007**, *26*, 3908.
- ⁷⁵ Matsuda, S., Kudara, H. US Pat. 4046791, September 6, **1977.**
- ⁷⁶ Lazarev, I. M., Dolgushin, G., V., Feshin, V. P., Voronkov, M. G., *Mendeleev Comm.*, **1996**, *6(4)*, 150.
- ⁷⁷ Saito, M., Hashimoto, H., Tajima, T., Ikeda, M., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **2007**, *692*, 2729.
- ⁷⁸ Paneth, F., Chem. Ber., **1920**, 53, 1710.
- ⁷⁹ Kraus, C. A., Greer, N. W., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1922**, 44, 2629.
- ⁸⁰ Wittig, G., Meyer, F. J., Lange, G., Ann., **1951**, *571*, 167.
- ⁸¹ Bullard, R. H., Vingee, R. A., J. Am Chem. Soc., **1929**, 51, 892.

⁸² Finholt, A.E., Bond, A.C., Wilzbach, K. E., Schlesinger, H. I., *J. Am. Chem. Soc.*, **1947**, 69, 2692.

⁸³ Gilman, H., Eisch, J., J. Org. Chem., **1955**, 20, 763.

⁸⁴ Lorenz, D. H., Shapiro P., Stern, A., Becker, E. I., *J. Org. Chem.*, **1963**, *28*, 2332.

⁸⁵ Stern, A., Becker, E. I., *J. Org. Chem.*, **1964**, *29*, 3221.

⁸⁶ Considine, W. J., Ventura, J., *J. Chem. Ind. London*, **1962**, 1683.

- ⁸⁷ Ziegler, K., Gellert, H. G., Lehmkuhl., H., Pfohl, W., Zosel, K. , *Angew. Chem.*, **1955**, *67*, 424.
- ⁸⁸ Neumann, W. P., Niermann, H., *Liebigs Ann. Chem.*, **1962**, *653*, 1962.

⁸⁹ Kula, M.-R., Amberger, E., Rupprecht, H., *Chem. Ber.*, **1965**, *98*, 629.

- ⁹⁰ Van der Kerk, G. J., Noltes, J. G, Luijten, J. G. A., *Chem. Ind. London.*, **1958**, 1290.
- ⁹¹ Tamborski, C., Soloski, E. J., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1961**, 83, 3734.
- ⁹² Tamborksi, C., Ford, F. E., Soloski, E. J., *J. Org. Chem.*, **1963**, *28*, 181.
- ⁹³ Tamborksi, C., Ford, F. E., Soloski, E. J., J. Org. Chem., **1963**, *28*, 237.
- ⁹⁴ Kula, M.-R., Lorberth, J., Amberger, E., *Chem. Ber.*, **1964**, *97*, 2087.
- ⁹⁵ Emeléus, H., Ketlle, S. F. A., *J. Chem. Soc.*, **1958**, 2444.
- ⁹⁶ Anderson, H. H., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1957**, 79, 4913.
- ⁹⁷ Dillard, C., McNeil, E. H., Simmons, D. E., Yeldell, J. B., *J. Am. Chem. Soc.*, **1958**, *80*, 3607.
- ⁹⁸ Gilman, H., Rosenberg, S. D., J. Org. Chem., **1953**, 18, 1554.
- ⁹⁹ Choffat, F., Smith, P., Caseri, W., Adv. Mater., **2008**, 20, 225.

¹⁰⁰ Sharma, H. K., Pannell, K. H. *,Tin Chemistry. Fundamentals, Frontiers, and Applications,* Wiley & Sons, Ltd, **2008**, 376.

- ¹⁰¹ Adams, S., Dräger, M., Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. Engl., **1987**, 26, 1255.
- ¹⁰² Adams, S., Dräger, *Main Group Met. Chem.*, **1988**, *11*, 151.
- ¹⁰³ Lu, V. Y., Don Tilley, T., *Macromolecules*, **2000**, *33*, 2403.

¹⁰⁴ Skotheim, T. A., *Handbook of Conductive Polymers*, Marcel Dekker, New York, Vols. 1 & 2,

1986.

¹⁰⁵ Bredas, J. L, Silbey, R., *Conjugated Polymers*, Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, Netherlands, **1991**.

¹⁰⁶ Pittman, C. U., Carraher, C. E., Zeldin, M., Sheats, J. E., Culbertson, B. M., *Metal*

Containing Polymeric Materials, Plenum, New York, 1996.

¹⁰⁷ Miles, D., Burrow, T., Lough, A., Foucher, D., *J. Inorg. Organomet. Polym.*, **2010**, *20*, 544.

- ¹⁰⁸ Löwig, C., *Mitt. Naturfosch. Ges. Zürich*, **1852**, *2*, 556.
- ¹⁰⁹ Cahours, A., Ann. Chim. Phys., **1860**, Sér. 3, 58, 5.
- ¹¹⁰ Cahours, A., Ann. Chem. Pharm., **1860**, 114, 227.
- ¹¹¹ Devylder, N., Hill, M., Molloy, K. C., Price, G., J. Chem. Comm., **1996**, 711.
- ¹¹² Mustafa, A., Achilleos, M., Ruiz-Iban, J., Davies, J., Benfield, R. E., Jones, R. G., Grandjean,
- D., Holder, S. J., Funct. Polym., 2006, 66, 123.
- ¹¹³ Zou, W. K., Yang, N. L., *Polym. Prep.*, **1992**, *33*, 188.
- ¹¹⁴ Imori, T., Lu, V., Cai, H., Tilley, T D., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1995**, *117*, 9931.
- ¹¹⁵ Harada, T., *Sci. Papers Inst. Phys. Chem. Res.*, **1939**, *35*, 290.
- ¹¹⁶ Pfeiffer, P., Prade, R., Rekate, H., *Chem. Ber.*, **1911**, *44*, 1269.
- ¹¹⁷ Holder, S. J., Jones, R. G., Benfield, R. E., Went, M., *J. Polymer*, **2006**, *37*, 3477.
- ¹¹⁸ Jones, R. G., Holder, S., *J. Polym. Int.*, **2006**, *55*, 711.
- ¹¹⁹ Bratton, D., Holder, S. J., Jones, R. G., Wong, W. K. C., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **2003**, *685*, 60.
- ¹²⁰ Trummer, M., Solenthaler, D., Smith, P., Caseri, W., *RSC Advances*, **2011**, *1*, 823.
- ¹²¹ Okano, M., Matsumoto, N., Arakawa, M., Tsuruta, T., Hamano, H., *Chem. Comm.*, **1998**, 1799.
- ¹²² Okano, M., Watanabe, K., *Electrochem. Comm.*, **2000**, *2*, 471.
- ¹²³ Okano, M., Watanabe, K., Totsuka, S., *Electrochemistry*, **2003**, *71*, 257.
- ¹²⁴ Khan, A., Gossage, R. A., Foucher, D., A., Can. J. Chem., **2010**, 88, 1046.
- ¹²⁵ Choffat, F., Smith, P., Caseri, W., J. Mater. Chem., **2005**, 15, 1789.
- ¹²⁶ Thompson, S. M., Schubert, U., *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, **2003**, *350*, 329.
- ¹²⁷ Bukolav, S. S., Leites, L. A., Lu, V., Tilley, T. D., *Macromolecules*, **2002**, *35*, 1757.
- ¹²⁸ Imori, T., Tilley, T. D. J., *Chem. Comm.*, **1993**, 1607.
- ¹²⁹ Neale, N. R., Tilley, T. D., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **2002**, 124, 3802.
- ¹³⁰ Woo, H. G., Park, J. M., Song., S. J., Yang, S. Y., Kim, I. S., Kim, W. G., *Bull. Korean Chem. Soc.*, **1997**, *18*, 1291.
- ¹³¹ Woo, H. G., Song, S. J., Kim, B. H., *Bull. Korean Chem. Soc.*, **1998**, *19*, 1161.
- ¹³² Schittelkopf, K., Fischer, R. C., Meyer, S., Wilfling, P., Uhlig, F., *Appl. Organomet. Chem.*, **2010**, *24*, 897.

¹³³ Choffat, F., Schmid, D., Caseri, W., Wolfer, P., Smith, P., *J. Macromolecules*, **2007**, *40*, 7878.

¹³⁴ Neumann, W. P., *Liebigs Ann. Chem.*, **1964**, *677*, 1.

¹³⁵Davies, A: G., Osei-Kissi, D. K., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1994**, 474, C8.

¹³⁶ Mathiasch, B., *Inorg. Nucl. Chem. Lett.*, **1977**, *13*, 13.

¹³⁷ Neumann, W. P., *The Organic Chemistry of Tin*, Wiley: London, **1970.**

¹³⁸ Poller, R. C., *The Chemistry of Organotin Compounds*, Logos: London, **1970**.

¹³⁹ Lechner, M.- L-., Trummer, M., Bräunlich, I., Smith, P. Caseri, W., Uhlig, F., Appl.

Organomet. Chem., 2011, 25, 769.

¹⁴⁰ Choffat, F., Wolfer, P., Smith, P., Caseri, W., *Macromol. Mat. Eng.*, **2010**, 295, 210.

¹⁴¹ Choffat, F., Buchmüller, Y., Mensing, C., Smith, P., Caseri, W. R., *J. Inorg. Organomet. Polym. Mater.*, **2009**, *19*, 166.

¹⁴² Trummer, M., Nauser, T., Lechner, M.-L., Uhlig, F., Caseri, W., *Polym. Degrad. Stabil.*, **2011**, *96*, 1841.

¹⁴³ Trummer, M., Choffat, F., Smith, P., Caseri, W., *Macromol. Rapid. Commun.*, **2012**, *33*, 448.
3 Results and Discussion

3.1 Objective of the Project

The objective of the project can be defined as the synthesis and characterization of *ortho*substituted aryltrichloro stannanes as well as their corresponding aryltrihydrido stannanes. The prepared tin trihydrides should serve as precursors for the generation of polyarylstannanes in the presence of TMEDA. The polymerization behavior of aryltin trihydrides should be investigated.

The synthetic scope was not only based on substituted phenyl derivatives, like *o*-tolyl, 2,4xylyl and 2,6-xylyl compounds, but also on condensed aromatic rings like 1-naphthyl and 9anthracenyl moieties. All synthesized aryltrihydrides have not been reported in thus far. Regarding the trichlorostannanes, only the *o*-tolyl and the 1-naphthyl derivative have been mentioned in the literature. The different substance classes are displayed in Figure 2, wherein Z stands for Cl or H respectively.



Figure 2: Synthetic scope

3.2 Synthesis of Tetraaryl Stannanes

The conversion of the arylhalides (*o*-tolyl, 2,4-xylyl, 2,6-xylyl) building up tetraaryl stannanes was carried out according to literature procedure.² Only the work up was modified slightly depending on the synthesized derivatives as described below.

3.2.1 Tetra-o-Tolylstannane 1



Scheme 40: Preparation of tetra-o-tolylstannane 1

Compound **1** was synthesized *via* a Grignard route according to Scheme 40. The resulting greenish solid was subjected to a ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR measurement in CDCl₃. Two signals could be found, the major signal at -54.5 ppm and a minor one -123.0 ppm. According to literature, the signals can be assigned as *o*-tol₃SnBr and the corresponding *o*-tol₄Sn in a ratio of 1:0.2.³ Therefore only 20% of the resulting mixture refers to the desired product **1** leading to a theoretical yield of 18%. The mixture was not subjected to further purification procedures. Onone hand Krause⁴ synthesized compound **1** on the Grignard route with 35% yield, whereas on the other hand Srivastava⁵, employing a Wurtz reaction in petrol-ether, also

obtained **1** in the same yield. Additionaly, applying aryltin lithium⁶ as educt only led to 4.2% yield of **1**. Consequently, the reaction might be limited by sterical factors yielding in a product mixture.

3.2.2 Tetra-2,4-Xylylstannane 2



Compound **2** was synthesized *via* a Grignard route according to Scheme 41. The reaction afforded a yellow oil which was investigated *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR measurement in CDCl₃ revealing three different signals at -47.6 ppm, -73.3 ppm and -119.4 ppm. By comparison with already published compounds³ from the substituted phenyl family as well with already in the literature mentioned shifts of the generated compounds², signals can be assigned as 2,4-xylyl₃Sn, 2,4-xylyl₄Sn and 2,4-xylyl₂SnCl₂ in a ratio of 1: 0.13: 0.16. Purification attempts *via* fractional distillation did not lead to full isolation of only one product, but minimized the ratio of Ar₂SnCl₂ and Ar₄Sn regarding R₃SnCl as the major product (0.09: 0.04: 1). That led to theoretical yield of 1.6% of the actually desired tetraaryl stannane, about 4% of 2,4-xylyl₂SnCl₂ and more than 94% of 2,4-xylyl₃SnCl.

In comparison to the product assignment gained during the synthesis of compound **1**, the same trend can be detected. The major product in both cases is the triaryl compound, but in this reaction also the disubstituted side product can be observed. The formation of the desired compound **2** is suppressed.

3.2.3 Tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane 3



Scheme 42: Preparation of tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane 3

Compound **3** was synthesized *via* a Grignard route according to Scheme 42. When trying to synthesize the tetraaryl compound with a 2,6-xylyl substituent, the steric demand obviously was too elevated, so that the reaction did not afford the desired product. While monitoring the reaction progress *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy after overnight stirring at room temperature, one signal at -132.7 ppm was observed. After refluxing the reaction mixture for 2 h a second ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR measurement was carried out in CDCl₃ giving rise to three different product signals at: -101.3 ppm, 132.2 ppm and -197.3 ppm. With the isolation method of choice, Soxhlet extraction using pentane, a white solid could be isolated, which then was subjected to an overnight ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C₆D₆) measurement. The spectrum revealed that the major product with a ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR shift of -131.6 can be found with a purity higher than 98% according to ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR, which leads to a theoretical yield of 19%. **3** was subjected to recrystallization from pentane to yield colorless crystals (Figure 3).

Confirmation about structure of the main product synthesized was given by X-ray analysis, revealing that it is the triaaryl derivative tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane. So far, only Bähr and Gelius⁷ reported about the synthesis of tetramesityl stannane in the year 1958 without structural prove. Since the *para* substituent is considered to not have any influence on the steric demand on the tetravalent tin, the two organic moieties can easily be compared. Trisubstitution seems to be the maximum regarding bulky aryl substituents like mesityl and 2,6-xylyl.

Table 3 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles of 3.



Figure 3: Crystal structure of tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane 3. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30% shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity.

Table 3: Selected bond length	ths and angles of tris-(2,6-xylyl)brom	iostannane 3
space group	bond length av. [Å]	angle av

	space group	bond length av. [Å]		bond length av. [Å] angle av.		av. [°]
compound		Sn-C	Sn-X	C-Sn-C	Br-Sn-C	
2,6-xylyl₃SnBr	P2 ₁ /c	2.164(2)	2.547(3)	115.8(8)	102.0(6)	

Tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane, 3, crystallizes in the monoclinic space group P2₁/c, whereas the tin can be found in a distorted tetrahedral environment coordinated to four different substituents as displayed in Figure 3. The tin is coordinated to three 2,6-xylyl ligands with an average bond length of 2.16 Å and to bromine with a bond length of 2.55(3) Å. The average C-Sn-C angle (115.8(8)°) is bigger, whereas the Br-Sn-C angle is smaller than the ideal tetrahedral one provoked by the steric demand of the 2,6-xylyl substituents. However, the values for bond lengths and angles lie in the expected area. Further discussion on the crystal structure will be given in chapter 3.5.

3.3 Synthesis of Trichloro Arylstannanes

All synthesized trichloro arylstannnes were prepared according to literature procedures by a Kozeschkow redistribution reaction if not otherwise stated (Scheme 43).⁸



Scheme 43: Kozeschkow redistribution reaction synthesizing aryltrichloro stannanes

3.3.1 Trichloro-o-tolylstannane 4

The product mixture gained within the preparation of compound **1** was treated with 3.1 equivalents of tin(IV) chloride leading to a liquid reaction mixture at room temperature, which was heated up to 150°C. The reaction progress was monitored by ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy. Measurement after 1 h showed the formation of the intermediate *o*-tolyl₂SnCl₂. By adding another 3.1 equivalents of SnCl₄ after 1 h the reaction equilibrium should have promoted full conversion. Further monitoring after 1 h still showed a significant ratio increase of the intermediate dichloride. Before working up the reaction mixture, *o*-tolyl₂SnCl₂ and the desired *o*-tolylSnCl₃, **5**, were detected in a ratio of 1:0.08 according to the ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectrum. For further purification the product mixture was distilled. However, **4** could not be gained without dichloride impurities (1:0.01), which in fact was not disturbing for subsequent conversion.

3.3.2 Trichloro-2,4-xylylstannane 5

The product mixture gained within the preparation of compound **2** was treated with 3.4 equivalents of $SnCl_4$ regarding the major product of the previous step (2,4-xylyl₃SnCl). The reaction was finished after 3 h reaction time resulting in a yellowish liquid. ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR investigation in CDCl₃ showed a side product (2%) at -111.3 ppm, which could be identified

as a tin(IV) chloride water adduct, recrystallized from the deuterated solvent. A yield of 18% can be calculated over the two step reaction starting with the arylhalide. No further purification was carried out, because the impurity was not relevant for subsequent conversion.

3.3.3 Trichloro-2,6-xylylstannane 6

Compound **3** was treated with 3.4 equivalents tin(IV) chloride and heated up to 180°C. NMR measurements in CDCl₃ after 1.5 h showed the formation of the intermediate compound 2,6-xylyl₂SnCl₂ at -94.2 ppm in significant amount. The mixture was stirred and heated for another 2.5 h to afford the desired product without further impurities with shift of -87.7 ppm in ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectrum in CDCl₃. To determine the first order coupling constants ¹*J* ¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C and ¹*J*¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C in ¹³C-NMR a relaxation delay of at least 25 sec was necessary. After distillation **6** was obtained as a white solid (44% yield), which was recrystallized from pentane (Figure 4).



Figure 4: Crystal structure of trichloro-2,6-xylylstannane **6**. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30% shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity.

Table 4 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles of 6.

	space Group	bond leng	gth av. [Å]	angle	av. [°]
compound		Sn-C	Sn-Cl	C-Sn-Cl	CI-Sn-Cl
2,6-xylylSnCl₃	Pbcn	2.123(2)	2.332(6)	116.2(7)	101.8(2)

Table 4: Selected bond lengths and angles of trichloro-2,6-xylylstannane 6

Trichloro-2,6-xylylstannen **6** crystallizes in the orthorhombic space group Pbcn. The tin can be found in a distorted tetrahedral environment, coordinated to four different substituents. As a central atom it is bonded to three chlorides and one 2,6-xylyl substituent (Figure 4). Due to the higher steric demand of the 2,6-methyl substituted phenyl group the average C-Sn-Cl angle (116.2(7)°) is significantly bigger than the average Cl-Sn-Cl (101.8(2)°) angle. However, the values for bond lengths and angles lie in the expected area. Further discussion on the crystal structure will be given in chapter 3.5.

3.3.4 Trichloro-1-naphthylstannane 8 and Tetra-1-naphthylstannane 7



Scheme 44: Preparation of tetra-1-naphthylstannane 7 and trichloro-1-naphthylstannane 8

It was attempted to realize the formation of trichloro-1-naphthylstannane **8** on route **b** according to Scheme 44. Due to the applied equimolar stoichiometry of the lithiated naphthyl compound and the used tin(IV) chloride the formation of 1-naphthylSnCl₃ was expected, but surprisingly after work up 64% of the tetraaryl stannane **7** could be isolated. Furthermore, ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectra showed no formation of any side products. Although the

steric demand resulting from fourfold substitution on the metal centre seems to be very high, the reaction proceeds with reasonably yields (64%). By recrystallization from pentane and toluene a crystal structure (Figure 5) could be obtained.



Figure 5: Crystal structure of tetra-1-naphthylstannane 7. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30% shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity

Table 5 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles of 7.

	space group	bond length av. [Å]	angle av. [°]
compound		Sn-C	C-Sn-C
1-naphthyl₄Sn	P2 ₁ /n	2.154(6)	109.5(3)

Table 5: Selected bond I	engths and	angles of tet	ra-1-naphthylstannane 7
--------------------------	------------	---------------	--------------------------------

Tetra-1-naphthylstannane **7** crystallizes in the monoclinic space group $P2_1/n$, whereas the tin can be found in a distorted tetrahedral environment coordinated to four naphthyl substituents (Figure 5). The average spanned C-Sn-C angle fits with the tetrahedral angle of 109.5(3)°. Further discussion on the crystal structure will be given in chapter 3.5.

Tetra-1-naphthylstannane, **7**, was subjected to a Kozeschkow redistribution reaction to yield in trichloro-1-naphthylstanne, **8**, as white crystals in 51% yield. It has to be taken into account that also for **8** a relaxation delay of at least 25 sec was necessary to detect the first order coupling constants ${}^{1}J {}^{119}$ Sn- 13 C and ${}^{1}J {}^{117}$ Sn- 13 C in 13 C-NMR spectra. By recrystallization from toluene the following crystal structure could be obtained (Figure 6).



Figure 6: Crystal structure of trichloro-1-naphthylstannane **8**. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30% shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity.

Table 6 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles of 8.

	space group	bond leng	th av. [Å]	angle	av. [°]
compound		Sn-C	Sn-Cl	C-Sn-Cl	Cl-Sn-Cl
1-naphthylSnCl ₃	P2 ₁ 2 ₁ 2 ₁	2.131(19)	2.302(5)	114.9(5)	103.5(3)

Trichloro-1-naphthylstannane **8** crystallizes in the orthorhombic space group $P2_12_12_1$, whereas the tin can be found in a distorted tetrahedral environment coordinated to four different substituents. The tin is bonded to three chlorides and one 1-naphthyl substituent (Figure 6). Due to the higher steric demand of the condensed aromatic ring system the average C-Sn-Cl angle (114.9(5)°) is significantly larger than the average Cl-Sn-Cl (103.5(3)°) angle. However, the values for bond lengths and angles lie in expected ranges. Further discussion on the crystal structure will be given in chapter 3.5.

3.3.5 9-Anthracenyl Systems

Various attempts to synthesize the challenging trichloro-9-anthracenylstannane were carried out and summarized in the following chapter.

3.3.5.1 Synthesis on the Lithiation Route

First a lithiation (*n*-BuLi) of the corresponding arylhalide was carried out and subsequent conversion with one equivalent SnCl₄ was used to afford trichloro-9-anthracenylstannane (Scheme 45).



Scheme 45: Lithiation Route for the synthesis of trichloro-9-anthracenylstannane

The reaction resulted in a brown powder and showed a ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR shift (CDCl₃) at -49 ppm. It has to be mentioned that at least 25 sec relaxation delay times were necessary to detect any Sn signals. Since the powder was hardly soluble in common organic solvents, recrystallization of the possible product failed. Furthermore, the same reaction was carried out using a twofold excess (2 eq.) of *n*-BuLi to avoid side products like ArSnBu₃, but no product formation could be detected. For that reason the lithiation route was neglected in the first place.

3.3.5.2 Synthesis on the Grignard Route

Consequently, attempts were made to isolate the desired product by subjecting 9bromoanthracene to a traditional Grignard reaction. The Grignard reagent subsequently was treated with 0.2 eq. SnCl₄ to result in substituted products (Scheme 46).



Scheme 46: Grignard route for the synthesis of 9-anthracenyl derivatives

The formation of a red and again badly soluble powder was observed, which showed two ¹¹⁹Sn shifts at -124 ppm and -146 ppm (CDCl₃) after overnight measurement (25 sec of relaxation delay). Hence, only a small amount of product was formed. By comparison with known ¹¹⁹Sn shifts, the peaks were considered to be 9-anth₃SnX or 9-anth₂SnX₂. In order to be able to specify the resulting signals, the product mixture was subjected to a hydrogenation with LAH and ether as solvent. Applying a hydrogen-coupled ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR measurement (C₆D₆), a single duplet at -272 ppm was observed **9b**. Thus, the intermediate product could be identified as 9-anthr₃SnX **9a**. Once again, the resulting yellowish powder turned out to be badly soluble in common organic solvents making isolation difficult.

3.3.5.3 Synthesis via Oxidative Addition

Furthermore, it was tried to realize the formation of the Ar-SnX₃ bond by oxidative addition of tin(II) chloride in THF at refluxing temperature (Scheme 47).⁹ Unfortunately, no reaction took place.



Scheme 47: Oxidative addition of SnCl₂ on 9-bromoanthracene

3.3.5.4 Synthesis via the Formation of a Tin(II) Species

The next attempt to achieve the desired product was the formation of an activated Sn(II) intermediate, which subsequently should be reduced by CCl_4 as shown in Scheme 48.¹⁰



Scheme 48: Attempts towards the formation of trichloro-9-anthracene via an activated Sn(II) intermediate

The reaction mixture was subjected to a standard work-up procedure, removing the solvent under reduced pressure. The resulting solid was suspended in toluene to precipitate salts. However, the supernatant solution showed no signal in the ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectrum, whereas in the precipitate (orange solid) a shift of -45 ppm applying a relaxation delay of 25 sec could be observed. As this signal was very similar to the one gained *via* the lithiation route (3.3.6.1), attempts to isolate the compounds were made. Hence, the orange residue was subjected to a solid phase extraction using heptane to afford 60 mg of a pale yellow powder. A second extraction fraction was gained utilizing ether to altogether obtain 0.31 g of a yellowish solid. The achieved compound was not soluble in a variety of organic solvents, therefore a characterization *via* NMR spectroscopy was not possible. Consequently, the thermal properties of the latter were investigated. Decomposition at around 248°C resulting in a dark green to black, amorphous solid and white, sublimating crystals was observed. To gain more information about the decomposition behavior a TGA, as well as a DTA were carried out. The results are displayed in Figure 7. First ideas about the formation of a tin(II) derivative could not be proven by TGA, elemental analysis and mass spectroscopy.



Figure 7: DTA and TGA of the anthracenyl derivative

Decomposition of the yellowish solid proceeds with a mass loss of 64.42 %. The percentage correlates with the loss of two anthracenyl groups regarding 9-anth₂SnCl₂. Additionally, elemental analysis should reveal information about the composition of the substance. In Table 7, experimental values are compared with calculated results of possible compounds being formed during the reaction. Relevant data is presented in bold.

Table	Table 7: Found and calculated C,H values [%] for anthracenyl derivatives					
		C [%]	H [%]			
experimental		58.63	3.12			
	ArSnCl₃	41.80	2.25			
	ArSn:Cl	50.74	2.74			
	Ar ₂ SnCl ₂	61.81	3.33			
calculated	Ar₃SnCl	73.55	3.97			
	Ar ₃ Sn-SnAr ₃	69.11	3.73			
	Ar ₂ ClSn-SnClAr ₂	66.12	3.57			
	ArCl ₂ Sn-SnCl ₂ Ar	45.84	2.47			

. . . ro/1 r Comparison of the values displays clearly that the gained substance is not a Sn(II) compound, because measured and calculated C,H values do agree. In fact, the found carbon ratio cannot be compared with any of the suggested products. However, the calculated values for dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane match most closely to the experimental data obtained as well as to with the TGA measurements.

Subsequently, the product was subjected to high resolution mass spectroscopy leading to following spectra (Figures 8 and 9).



Figure 8: M/z fragmentation of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane (DI-EI-TOF)



Figure 9: 1. Theoretical isotope pattern of M⁺ 2. Experimental isotope pattern of M⁺

The found isotope pattern of M^+ indicates the formation of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane **9**.

3.3.5.5 Temperature Study of the Lithiation Route

Because of a signal at -49 ppm (see chapter 3.3.6.1) in the ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectrum the lithiation route was carried out again. The first step (lithiation) was always performed at -78°C, whereas the temperature profile of the second reaction (conversion with SnCl₄) was varied from -78°C to room temperature. In each case the reaction was monitored after a micro work-up in CDCl₃ with ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy (25 sec relaxation delay). The temperature dependency of the generated product mixture is illustrated in Figure 10.



Figure 10: ¹¹⁹Sn-NMRs (CDCl₃) from the temperature dependency study of the lithiation route

It can be concluded that in every case a signal at -82.3 ppm can be observed. When running the reaction at 0°C only a single peak at -85.2 ppm was detected. All gained product mixtures were subjected to a standard work up, removing the solvent under reduced pressure and precipitating the salts with toluene. Furthermore, the achieved products were subjected to recrystallization from toluene, which yielded rod like, orange crystals for the -78°C experiment (Figure 11). These crystals could be identified as 9-anth₂SnCl₂ with a ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR chemical shift of -47.1 ppm. The second product with a ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR chemical shift at -80.0 ppm could not be identified so far.



Figure 11: Crystal structure of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane 9. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30% shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity.

Table 8 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles of 9.

Table 8: Selected Bond lengths and angles of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane 9						
space group bond length av. [Å] angle av [°]						
compound		Sn-C	Sn-Cl	C-Sn-C	C-Sn-Cl	Cl-Sn-Cl
9-anth ₂ SnCl ₂	P21/c	2.134(6)	2.351(15)	119.68(2)	109.6(18)	96.24(5)

Dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane **9** crystallizes in the monoclinic space group $P2_1/c$, wherein the can be found in a distorted tetrahedral environment coordinated to four different substituents. The tin is bonded to two 9-anthracenyl substituents as well to two chlorides (Figure 12). Due to the higher steric demand of the condensed aromatic rings the average Cl-Sn-Cl angle is very compressed to only 96.24(5)°. In that manner it is possible that the anthracenyl moieties fit in the tetrahedral environment spanning an average C-Sn-C angle of 119.68(2)°, as well expected shorter C-Sn-Cl angle of 109.6(18)°. Further discussion on the crystal structure will be given in chapter 3.5.

3.3.5.6 Conclusion

MS data confirmed that the product gained through the reaction *via* the activated Sn(II) compound is dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane **9** with an ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR chemical shift at -45 ppm. This compound recrystallizes from toluene in the presence of an unidentified side product at -80.0 ppm regarding the temperature study. Herein, the product peak was found again at -47.1 ppm as shown in Figure 10.

3.4 Synthesis of Triarylstannanes

3.4.1 Tri-2,6-xylylstannane 10

The hydrogenation was carried out in the same way as for the trihydrides (chapter 3.6), but just 1.5 equivalents of LAH were used (Scheme 50).¹¹



Scheme 50: Preparation of tri-2,6-xylylstannane

Tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane **3** was subjected to reduction in order to better purify the product mixture, as well as to specify maginal side products of **3**, by subsequent hydrogencoupled ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy. However, the ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectrum showed no side products, allowing isolation of 57% white solid, which was recrystallized from toluene yielding in colorless crystals. The crystal structure is displayed in Figure 12.

Similarly for the trichloro derivate, at least 25 sec of relaxation delay is also necessary to detect the first order coupling constants ${}^{1}J {}^{119}$ Sn- 13 C and ${}^{1}J {}^{117}$ Sn- 13 C in 13 C-NMR.



Figure 12: Crystal structure of tri-2,6-xylylstannane 10. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30% shaded ellipsoids. Not relevant hydrogen atoms removed for clarity.

Table 9 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles of 10.

	space group	bond lengt	ength av. [Å] angle av. [°]		av. [°]
compound		Sn-C	Sn-H	C-Sn-C	H-Sn-C
2,6-xylyl₃SnH	P-1	2.158(7)	n.o.	114.2(2)	n.o.

 Table 9: selected bond lengths and angles of tri-2,6-xylylstannane 10

Tri-2,6-xylystannane **10** crystallizes in the triclinic space group P-1, whereas the tin can be found in a distorted tetrahedral environment coordinated to four different substituents. The tin is bonded to three 2,6-xylyl subtituents as well to one hydrogen, which was not able to be located *via* X-ray analysis (Figure 12). Due to the higher steric demand of the substituted aromatic ring the average C-Sn-C angle (114.2(2)°) is significantly wider than a tetrahedral angle. Unfortunately, there is no comparable literature data available about monohydrides, so that more information on the similar structures could not be given. Further discussion on the crystal structure will be given in chapter 3.5.

3.5 Comparison of Crystal Structures

This chapter provides a detailed overview of selected bond lengths and angles of published substances, as well as novel compounds which synthesized during this work. Furthermore, conclusions about the influence of increasing steric demand of substituents of the tetravalent tin on selected bond lengths and angles will be presented.

	Table 10: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar ₄ Sn						
Ar₄Sn	space group	bond length av. [Å]	angle av. [°]	Ref.			
R		Sn-C	C-Sn-C				
Ph	P42 ₁ c	2.139(5)	111.2(2)	12			
<i>o</i> -Tol	P42 ₁ c	2.152(5)	112.6(3)	11			
3-Tol	14 ₁ /a	2.150(3)	109.3(4)	13			
4-Tol	14	2.147(6)	114.4(3)	14			
3,5-Xylyl	P421c	2.134(5)	109.5(7)	15			
2,4-Xylyl	P1	2.139(2)	109.4(9)	16			
1-Naphthyl	P2 ₁ /n	2.154(6)	109.5(3)	this work			
2-Naphthyl	1-4	2.142(3)	107.3(6)	17			

Table 10 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles for Ar₄Sn compounds.

Comparison of published crystal structure data of tetraaryl stannane leads to the observation that average bond lengths and angles are not affected by the bulkiness of the organic substituent on the tetravalent tin. Sn-C bond lengths fall in a range of 2.13 - 2.15 Å, whereas C-Sn-C angles are about 107 - 114°.

Table 11 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles for Ar₃SnX compounds.

	Table 11: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar ₃ SnX						
	Ar₃SnX	space group	oup bond length av. [Å]		angle av [°]		Ref
	R		Sn-C	Sn-X	C-Sn-C	X-Sn-C	
Br	Ph	P21/c	2.114(8)	2.495(2)	113.4(3)	105.2(2)	18
Ы	2,6-xylyl	P21/c	2.164(8)	2.547(2)	115.8(3)	102.0(2)	this work
	Ph	P21/c	2.116(4)	2.356(4)	113.3(2)	105.3(11)	19
	<i>o</i> -Tol	P21/n	2.132(3)	2.376(10)	114.3(13)	104.0(10)	20
CI	<i>m-</i> Tol	R3	2.123(1)	2.379(2)	114.0(14)	104.4(6)	3
Ci	<i>p</i> -Tol	P-1	2.118(18)	2.373(6)	114.1(7)	104.4(5)	19
	3,5-Xylyl	R3c	2.124(2)	2.358(4)	111.9(2)	106.9(1)	3
	Mesityl	P21/n	2.158(5)	2.390(13)	115.4(17)	102.6(14)	21

Table 11: Comparison of colocted band lengths and angles for Ar SnV

For the Ar₃SnBr class only Ph₃SnBr can be compared, therefore the chloride analogues have been taken into account as well. The average Sn-C bond length falls in a range of 2.11 - 2.13Å regarding all monosubstituted phenyl moieties as well as 3,5-xylyl. It has to be pointed out that the higher steric pressure of 2,6-xylyl and mesityl moieties leads to a slight increase of the average Sn-C bond up to 2.16(8) Å. However, the Sn-X bond is not affected by the organic substituent. The C-Sn-C angle is affected regarding the two biggest substituents leading to a maximum angle of 115.8(3)°, which in comparison to the general range of 113 -114° is slightly increased. Therefore, corresponding X-Sn-C angles decrease a little bit with 2,6-xylyl and mesityl as organic groups.

Table 12: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar ₃ SnX						
ArSnCl₃	space group	bond length av. [Å]		bond length av. [Å] angle av. [°]		Ref.
R		Sn-C	Sn-Cl	C-Sn-Cl	Cl-Sn-Cl	
2,6-Xylyl	Pbcn	2.123(2)	2.332(6)	116.2(7)	101.8(2)	this work
1-Naphthyl	$P2_{1}2_{1}2_{1}$	2.131(19)	2.302(5)	114.9(5)	103.5(3)	this work
Mesityl	P21/c	2.128(6)	2.315(2)	117.3(2)	100.8(3)	22
Ph*	P1-n	2.155(5)	2.324(3)	117.1(14)	100.9(8)	23

Table 12 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles for Ar₃SnX compounds.

It can be observed that starting from the 2,6-methyl substituted aromatic ligand, **6**, synthesized compounds are solid at room temperature. Therefore, it can be pointed out that changes in substitution position of the methyl groups, as seen in trichloro-2,4-xylylstannane **5** result in a liquid. Mono methyl-substituted aryltrichloro stannanes ,as e.g. trichloro-*o*-tolylstannane **4**, are liquid too. This can be explained by the decreased steric hindrance to the cental tin atom.

Average Sn-C and Sn-Cl bonds as well as C-Sn-Cl and Cl-Sn-Cl angles are not affected by the size of the substituents and fall in a range of 2.12 - 2.16 Å, 2.302 - 2.33 Å, 115 - 117° and 101 - 104°, respectively.

Table 13 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles for Ar₂SnCl₂ compounds.

Ar ₂ SnCl ₂	space group	bond length av. [Å]		angle av. [°]		Ref.	
R		Sn-C	Sn-Cl	C-Sn-C	C-Sn-Cl	Cl-Sn-Cl	
Ph	P-1	2.112(5)	2.345(2)	123.9(4)	107.3(2)	101.7(1)	24
<i>p</i> -Biphenyl	P21/n	2.130(9)	2.386(3)	130.8(3)	105.6(2)	99.72(9)	25
Mesityl	Pbcn	2.117(4)	2.414(4)	119.7(5)	108.9(3)	100.3(3)	26
(2,4,6 <i>i</i> Pr)Ph	C2/c	2.147(4)	2.353(2)	119,7(2)	109.8(2)	96.20(1)	27
Supermesityl	P21/c	2.198(2)	2,371(4)	117.0(4)	111.0(2)	94.48(1)	28
2-Naphthyl	P21/n	2.111(2)	2.355(5)	119.3(3)	109.2(4)	101.3(7)	16
9-Anthracenyl	P21/c	2.134(6)	2.351(15)	119,7(2)	109.6(18)	96.24(5)	this work

Table 13: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar₂SnCl₂

By comparison with already published data it is obvious, that the Sn-C bond of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane **9** falls within the range of 2.11 - 2.15 Å. Only the Sn-C bond of the supermesityl derivative slightly differs with a value of 2.198(2) Å. Regarding the average C-Sn-C, Ph_2SnCl_2 surprisingly shows the widest angle with 130.8(3)° in comparison to a usual range of 119 - 124°. Dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane **9** exhibits a decreased Cl-Sn-Cl bond (96.24(5)°) in comparison to the 2-naphthyl derivative (101.3(7)°) containing only two condensed aromatic rings due to the higher steric pressure of the anthracenyl ligands.

Table 14 summarizes selected bond lengths and angles for aryltin hydrides.

	Table 14: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for aryltin hydrides						
Ar₃SnH	space group	bond leng	gth av. [Å]		angle av. [°]	Ref
R		Sn-C	Sn-H	C-Sn-C	H-Sn-C	H-Sn-H	
2,6-xylyl	P-1	2.158(7)	n.o.	114.2(2)	n.o.	-	this work
Ar ₂ SnH ₂							
R							
Mesityl	C2/c	2.154(1)	1.669(2)	111.1(4)	110.6(7)	105.3(1)	29

Unfortunately, there is no crystallographic data available for tin monohydrides, so that crystal data of Mes₂SnH₂ is also displayed in Table 14.

All in all it can be pointed out, that C-Sn-C in the tetraaryl case as well as C-Sn-Cl angles for all other compounds can be ranked in the following manner.

$$Ar_2SnCl_2 < Ar_4Sn < Ar_3Snx < ArSnCl_3$$

This clearly shows, that the spanned angle is not only a question of the steric demand of the substituent but also of the electron repulsion induced by electron rich halides. In case of the bond lengths, Sn-X remains unaffected by other substituents.²¹

3.6 Synthesis of Trihydrido Arylstannanes

The synthesis and work up for all trihydrido stannanes (**11**, **12**, **13**, **14**) proceeded in the same manner by employing 2 equivalents of LAH (scheme 51) resulting in moderate to high yields as shown in table 15.¹¹



Scheme 51: Hydrogenation of aryltrichlorostannanes resulting in aryltin trihydrides

R	yield [%]
<i>o-</i> Tol 11	50
2,4-Xylyl 12	68
2,6-Xylyl 13	86
1-Naphthyl 14	75

Table 15: Yields for all synthesized trihydrido arylstannanes

All synthesized trihydrides were stored at -80°C, under nitrogen atmosphere. Slow decomposition over several months under the formation of a yellowish to brownish solid, which is not soluble in common organic solvents could be detected.

3.7 Polymerization Attempts

Polymerization attempts of the aryltin trihydrides in the presence of TMEDA using ether as solvent were carried according the conditions described by Lechner.³⁰



Scheme 52: Polymerization of aryltrihydrido stannanes in the presence of TMEDA

To a colorless solution of *o*-tolylstannane **11** in ether 1 equivalent of TMEDA was added at room temperature which immediately led to a color change to slightly orange and the formation of hydrogen. The color change was also reported in several publications³¹⁻³⁴ dealing with the visible properties of polystannanes induced by $\sigma \rightarrow \sigma^*$ and $\sigma \rightarrow \pi$ transitions. Already after 1 h reaction time the mixture turned black. In order to isolate the amorphous solid the solvent was removed under reduced pressure and the remaining product extracted with THF to separate soluble parts. ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR investigation of the supernatant THF solution showed no signal. The resulting product can be described as amorphous solid, insoluble in organic solvents. Furthermore, the substance decomposes at ambient conditions under the formation of a white to yellowish solid. This decomposed substance is also not soluble in common organic solvents. In order to know whether there are organic groups left in the polymer, the black substance was subjected to elemental analysis to determine the carbon, as well as hydrogen content. To gain qualitative information about the percentage of Sn in the polymer, also EDX measurements were carried out. Experimental C,H values are compared with calculated ones referring to different polymerization degrees (Table 16).

	polymer composition		element	
		C [%]	H [%]	Sn [%]
	(RSnH ₂) ₂	39.68	4.28	56.03
calculated	RSnH _n	39.87	3.82	56.30
	RSn _x	40.07	3.36	56.57
found		29.87	2.59	60.04

Table 16: Elemental analysis (C,H) and EDX (Sn) measurements of the polymerization product

Elemental analysis (C,H values) does not exactly fit with a polymer of the type $(RSn)_x$. Hence, it can be suspected that during the reaction organic moieties got lost besides H₂. Furthermore, EDX measurement reveals a Sn ratio of 60%, suggesting the formation of a polymer composition of $(R_{0.95}Sn)_x$.

An addition polymerization reaction was also carried out using 2,4-xylylstannane. In order to investigate the temperature dependency of the reaction process, six different reactions where carried at -30°C, -20°C, -10°C, 0°C, 10°C and ambient temperature. All of them were stirred for 1 h and then subjected to ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR measurements using a CDCl₃ capillary tube to reference the spectra. It could be found out that, the reaction even starts at -40°C immediately under the formation of hydrogen and a color change to slightly orange. After 1 h stirring time, the reaction carried out at -30°C was dark red, color change at 35 min was observed for the reaction maintained at 0°C and at 20 min for the reaction at 10°C. In all of the red colored suspensions a remaining hydride signal in the ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR could be detected. Again, the reaction which was carried out at room temperature neither showed the educt signal, or other signals due to solubility problems. However, a black precipitate was obtained. Based on these findings, further investigations are ongoing.

3.8 Comparison of ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR Data of Ar₄Sn, Ar₃SnX, Ar₂SnCl₂, ArSnCl₃, Ar₃SnH and ArSnH₃

This chapter gives an overview on the 119 Sn-NMR data overview of relevant compounds presented in literature and in this work. If nor otherwise stated values are listed for CDCl₃ as NMR solvent.

Table 17 summarizes 119 Sn-NMR shifts of Ar₄Sn, Ar₃SnCl, Ar₃SnBr and RSnH₃ compounds in CDCl₃.

	Ar₄Sn	Ar₃SnCl	Ar₃SnBr	ArSnCl₃	RSnH₃ ^ª
Ph	-128.8 ³	-44.81 ³	-60.01 ³	-65 ³⁵	-320 ³⁵
<i>o</i> -Tol	-122.6	-32.28 ³	-53.98 ³	-54,4	-358
<i>m</i> -Tol	-128.0 ³	-42.33 ³	-56.87 ³		
<i>p</i> -Tol	-124.6 ²	-35.91 ³⁶	-52.17 ³⁶		
2,4-Xylyl	-119.3	-40.55		-57,03	-352,4
2,6-Xylyl			-131.6	-88,18	-417,5
3,5-Xylyl	-127.5 ³	-39.68 ³	-53.55 ³		
Mes		-84.39 ³	-121.0 ³	-85,5 ³⁷	
1-Naph	-118.8 ^a	-37,20 ¹⁶		-55.0	-358,9
2-Naph	-117.6 ^{a,16}				

 Table 17:
 ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR Data (ppm) for Ar₄Sn, Ar₃SnCl, Ar₃SnBr, ArSnCl₃ and RSnH₃ in CDCl₃

a... C₆D₆ was used as a solvent

For these compounds the bulkiness of the organic substituents does not affect the range of the ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR signal, whereas electronegative substituents like halides lead to down field shifts due to the shielding of the external magnetic field.

Table 18 summarizes coupling constants of Ar_4Sn , Ar_3SnX , Ar_2SnCl_2 , Ar_3SnH and $ArSnH_3$ compounds.

Organic moiety ip ² C- ¹¹⁰ Sn ⁱ ip ⁴ C- ¹¹⁰ Sn ⁱ ip ⁴ H- ¹¹⁰ Sn ⁱ <		Table 18: Coupling Constants Overview					
Ph5313 <i>a</i> -Tol5213 <i>m</i> -Tol52738 <i>p</i> -Tol537382,4 ×ylyl529504153,5 ×Xlyl52231-Naph5204974152-Naph52950516Ar,5nCl9h6163 <i>p</i> -Tol6043 <i>p</i> -Tol6025363,5 ×Xlyl6033Mes5963 <i>p</i> -Tol6253 <i>p</i> -Tol5963 <i>p</i> -Tol5963 <i>p</i> -Tol5963 <i>p</i> -Tol5913 <i>Ar</i> ,5nCl <i>p</i> -Tol6072.6 ×Xlyl570544this work3.5 ×Xlyl5803 <i>Ar</i> ,5nCl1-Naph770 <i>Ar</i> ,5nCl2.4 ×Xlyl1101 <i>Ar</i> ,5nCl1-Naph770 <i>Ar</i> ,5nCl2.4 ×Xlyl1062 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH9h1127 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH9h534 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH9h534 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH9h534 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH9h534 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH9h534 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH93534 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH94534 <i>Ar</i> ,5nH10629h1127107169711835118162.6 ×Xlyl53491162118161181611816118 <th></th> <th>Organic moiety</th> <th>¹<i>J</i>¹³C-¹¹⁹Sn[*]</th> <th>¹<i>J</i>¹³C-¹¹⁷Sn[*]</th> <th>¹<i>J</i>¹H-¹¹⁹Sn^{**}</th> <th>¹J1H-¹¹⁷Sn^{**}</th> <th>Ref.</th>		Organic moiety	¹ <i>J</i> ¹³ C- ¹¹⁹ Sn [*]	¹ <i>J</i> ¹³ C- ¹¹⁷ Sn [*]	¹ <i>J</i> ¹ H- ¹¹⁹ Sn ^{**}	¹ J1H- ¹¹⁷ Sn ^{**}	Ref.
o-Tol 521 3 m -Tol 527 3 p -Tol 537 38 $2,4$ -Xylyl 529 504 15 $3,5$ -Xylyl 522 3 3 1 -Naph 520 497 this work 2 -Naph 529 505 16 o -Tol 604 3 3 o -Tol 604 3 3 o -Tol 604 3 3 p -Tol 625 36 3 p -Tol 602 3 3 m -Tol 603 3 3 m -Tol 596 3 3 m -Tol 591 3 3 m -Tol 591 3 3 m -Tol 591 3 3 m -Tol 595 3 3 m -Tol 591 3 3 m -Tol 591 3 3 3		Ph	531				3
m-Tol5273p-Tol537382,4-xylyl529504153,5-Xylyl52231-Naph5204972-Naph52950516o-Tol6043p-Tol6083p-Tol6083p-Tol602363,5-Xylyl6033m-Tol6083p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol5963p-Tol5963p-Tol5963p-Tol5963p-Tol5963p-Tol5963p-Tol5913p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol5963p-Tol6073p-Tol5963p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol6073p-Tol5063p-Tol5063p-Tol507544p-Tol708753p-Tol1087p-Tol1087p-Tol1087p-Tol1087p-Tol1087p-Tol1087p-Tol1087p-Tol1087p-Tol1087<		<i>o</i> -Tol	521				3
$h_{r,s} Sn$ p -Tol 537 38 2,4 Xylyl 529 504 15 3,5-Xylyl 522 3 1-Naph 520 497 this work 2-Naph 529 505 16 $Ar_s SnCl$ Ph 616 3 ar_f o -Tol 608 3 m -Tol 625 36 $a, 5-Xylyl$ 603 3 m -Tol 596 3 p -Tol 625 36 $a, 5-Xylyl$ 603 3 m -Tol 596 3 $ar_s Sncl_a$ p -Tol 607 36 $a, 5-Xylyl$ 570 544 this work $Ar_s Sncl_a$ 1 -Naph 770 736 3 $Ar_s Sncl_a$ 1 -Naph 788 753 16 $Ar_s Sncl_a$ $2, 6$ -Xylyl 10037 1039 this work $Ar_s Sncl_a$ P -Tol 1062 1015 t		<i>m</i> -Tol	527				3
Ar,Sm 2,4-Xylyl 529 504 15 3,5-Xylyl 522 3 3 1-Naph 520 497 this work 2-Naph 529 505 16 Ph 616 3 3 <i>a</i> r,SnCl <i>m</i> -Tol 604 3 <i>p</i> -Tol 625 36 3 <i>p</i> -Tol 625 36 3 <i>p</i> -Tol 625 36 3 <i>p</i> -Tol 6596 3 3 <i>p</i> -Tol 596 3 3 <i>p</i> -Tol 596 3 3 <i>p</i> -Tol 597 544 this work <i>a</i> -SonCl ₂ 1-Naph 770 736 16 <i>Ar_SonCl</i> 2 1-Naph 770 736 16 <i>Ar_SonCl</i> 2 2,4-Xylyl 1001 1052 this work <i>Ar_SonCl</i> 2 2,4-Xylyl 1002 1015 this work <i>Ar_SonCl</i> 2 2,4-Xylyl 1002	Ar.Sn	<i>p</i> -Tol	537				38
3,5-Xylyl 522 3 1-Naph 520 497 this work 2-Naph 529 505 16 0-Tol 604 3 3 <i>a</i> r,SnCl <i>m</i> -Tol 608 3 <i>m</i> -Tol 602 36 3 <i>m</i> -Tol 608 3 3 <i>m</i> -Tol 608 3 3 <i>m</i> -Tol 607 36 3 <i>m</i> -Tol 596 3 3 <i>n</i> -Tol 596 3 3 <i>n</i> -Tol 591 16 <t< th=""><th>Ai 4311</th><td>2,4-Xylyl</td><td>529</td><td>504</td><td></td><td></td><td>15</td></t<>	Ai 4311	2,4-Xylyl	529	504			15
1-Naph 520 497 this work 2-Naph 529 505 16 Ar_3SnCl Ph 616 3 -o-Tol 604 3 3 m-Tol 608 3 3 p-Tol 625 36 3 Mes 596 3 3 Mes 596 3 3 m-Tol 586 3 3 m-Tol 591 3 3 m-Tol 591 36 3 Ar_3SnBr p-Tol 607 36 2.6-Xylyl 570 544 this work 3.5-xylyl 580 3 3 Mes 580 3 3 Ar_3SnCl 1-Naph 770 736 16 Ar_3SnVl 1087 1039 this work Ar_3SnH Ph 1101 1052 this work Ar_3SnH Ph 1936 35		3,5-Xylyl	522				3
2-Naph 529 505 16 Ar,SnCI Ph 616 3 m-Tol 608 3 p-Tol 625 36 3,5-Xylyl 603 3 Mes 596 3 Mes 596 3 o-Tol 586 3 n-Tol 596 3 o-Tol 586 3 n-Tol 591 3 o-Tol 586 3 p-Tol 607 36 2,6-Xylyl 570 544 58 Mes 580 3 Mes 580 3 Ar_sSnCl_ 1-Naph 770 736 16 2,6-Xylyl 1087 1039 this work Ar_sSnCl_ 2,4-Xylyl 10062 1015 this work Ar_sSnH 2,6-Xylyl 1062 1015 35 Ar_sSnH Ph 1102 1076 1697		1-Naph	520	497			this work
Ph 616 3 Ar ₃ SnCl o -Tol 604 3 m-Tol 608 36 p -Tol 625 36 $3,5$ -Xylyl 603 3 Mes 596 3 Mes 596 3 ρ -Tol 586 3 n -Tol 591 3 n -Tol 591 3 n -Tol 591 3 p -Tol 607 36 $2,6$ -Xylyl 570 544 54 Ar_3 SnCl 3 3 Mes 580 3 Ar_2 SnCl 1-Naph 770 736 16 $2.Naph$ 788 753 16 35 Ar_5nCl_3 $2,6$ -Xylyl 1062 1015 this work Ar_5nH Ph 1101 1052 this work Ar_5nH Ph 1936 35 Ar_5nH Ph 1920		2-Naph	529	505			16
o -Tol 604 3 h -Tol 608 36 p -Tol 625 36 p -Tol 625 3 Mes 596 3 Mes 596 3 Ph 596 3 σ -Tol 586 3 σ -Tol 586 3 m -Tol 591 3 ρ -Tol 607 36 ρ -Tol 607 36 $2,6$ -Xylyl 570 544 510 Mes 580 3 Ar_35nCl_2 1-Naph 770 736 16 $2,6$ -Xylyl 1087 1039 this work Ar_35nCl_2 1-Naph 712 1074 this work Ar_35nH_2 Ph 1113 35 ar_35nH_2 Ph 1936 35 Ar_35nH_2 Ph 1936 35 Ar_50nH_2 Ph 1920 35		Ph	616				3
$Ar_3 SnCl$ m -Tol 608 3 p -Tol 625 36 $3, 5$ -Xylyl 603 3 Mes 596 3 Mes 596 3 Mes 596 3 Ph 596 3 o -Tol 586 3 m -Tol 591 3 m -Tol 607 36 $2,6$ -Xylyl 570 544 this work $3,5$ -xylyl 580 3 Ar_2SnCl_2 1 -Naph 770 736 16 $2,6$ -Xylyl 1087 1039 this work Ar_2SnCl_2 $2,Axylyl$ 1007 1039 Ar_5nH_2 $2,6$ -Xylyl 1007 105 Ar_5nH_2 Ph 1127 1074 16 Ar_2SnH_2 Ph 1936 35 $2,6$ -Xylyl 534 512 1776 169		<i>o</i> -Tol	604				3
h 3 met p-Tol 625 36 3,5-Xylyl 603 3 Mes 596 3 Ph 596 3 o-Tol 586 3 m-Tol 591 3 Ar_3SnBr p-Tol 607 36 2,6-Xylyl 570 544 36 2,6-Xylyl 570 544 36 3,5-Xylyl 580 3 36 Ar_2SnCl_2 1-Naph 770 736 16 2.4-Xylyl 1087 1039 16 35 ArSnCl_3 2,4-Xylyl 1101 1052 this work ArSnCl_3 2,4-Xylyl 1062 1015 this work ArSnH Ph 1127 1074 35 Ar_SnH Ph 1936 35 Ar_SnH Ph 1928 35 Ar_SnH Ph 1928 35 Ar_SnH Ph 1920 35	Ar SnCl	<i>m</i> -Tol	608				3
3,5-Xylyl 603 3 Mes 596 3 Ph 596 3 ρ -Tol 586 3 m -Tol 591 3 m -Tol 591 36 p -Tol 607 36 $2,6$ -Xylyl 570 544 580 Ar_3 SnBr p -Tol 607 3 Ar_2 SnCl ₂ 1-Naph 770 544 580 Ar_2 SnCl ₂ 1-Naph 770 736 16 Ar_2 SnCl ₂ 2,A-Xylyl 1087 1039 this work Ar_3 SnH Ph 1118 35 55 Ar_3 SnH Ph 1127 1074 this work Ar_3 SnH Ph 1936 35 Ar_3 SnH Ph 1928 35 Ar_2 SnH ₂ Ph 1928 35 Ar_3 SnH Ph 1920 35 Ar_3 SnH S68 543 1908 1824 Ar_3 SnH S68 543 1908 1824 16	AI 35IICI	<i>p</i> -Tol	625				36
Mes5963Ph5963o-Tol5863m-Tol5913p-Tol607362,6-Xylyl5705443,5-xylyl5803Mes5803Ar_SnCl_1-Naph770736162-Naph788753Ph1118ArSnCl_2,4-Xylyl10071-Naph1039this work2,6-Xylyl10101052ArSnHPh1137Ph11271074Ar_SnHPh1936Ar_SnH543512Ph192835ArSnH568543Ph192835ArSnH2,4-Xylyl580Stat5181947Ph192035ArSnH2,4-Xylyl580Stat5181814His work5551898ArSnH2,4-Xylyl580Stat5551898ArSnH2,4-XylylArSnH2,4-XylylStat55518981814ArSnH2,4-XylylStat555189818144rSnH2,6-XylylStat555189818124rSnH18491-Naph755189418491504555150518951607169716071697		3,5-Xylyl	603				3
Ph5963o-Tol5863m-Tol5913p-Tol607362,6-Xylyl5705443,5-xylyl5803Mes5803Mes580162,0-Xphyl7707361-Naph7707361-Naph788753Ar_SnCl_10871039Ph111835o-Tol10871039ArSnCl_2,4-Xylyl10011-Naph11271074this work1-Naph352,6-Xylyl534512Ar_SnH_Ph1936Ph192835Ar_SnH_Ph1928Ph192835Ar_SnH_543513Ph192035o-Tol568543Ph192035o-Tol5685431-Naph544520Ph192035o-Tol5685431-Naph5432,4-Xylyl5802,4-Xylyl5802,4-Xylyl58055518981814this work2,6-Xylyl58255818961641934165164170058217001812170018121651812170018417001841812164		Mes	596				3
o-Tol5863 <i>m</i> -Tol5913 <i>p</i> -Tol607362,6-Xylyl570544this work3,5-xylyl5803Mes5803 <i>Ar_2SnCl_2</i> 1-Naph770736162.Naph78875316 <i>Ar_SnCl_3</i> Ph111835 <i>ArSnCl_3</i> 2,4-Xylyl10011052this work <i>ArSnCl_3</i> Ph11271074this work <i>ArSnCl_4</i> Ph112710741697 <i>ArSnH_3</i> Ph122710741697 <i>ArSnH_4</i> Ph53451217761697 <i>ArSnH_4</i> Ph19283535 <i>ArSnH_4</i> 5445201937185116 <i>ArSnH_4</i> 7-Tol56854319081824this work <i>ArSnH_3</i> 0-Tol56854319081824this work <i>ArSnH_4</i> 1-Naph54255518981814this work <i>ArSnH_4</i> 1-Naph58255518981814this work <i>ArSnH_3</i> 0-Tol56854319081812this work <i>ArSnH_4</i> 1-Naphnot foundnot found19341849this work		Ph	596				3
m-Tol5913Ar_3SnBrp-Tol607362,6-Xylyl570544this work3,5-xylyl5803Mes5803Ar_2SnCl_21-Naph770736162-Naph78875316Ph111835o-Tol10871039this workArSnCl_32,4-Xylyl11011052this work2,6-Xylyl10621015this work1-Naph11271074this workAr_SOnHPh193635Ar_SOnH_2Ph5435121776Ph54351819471851ArSnH_32,4-Xylyl5805551898ArSnH_45201937185116ArSnH_354351819471855ArSnH_356854319081824ArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58055518981814ArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58255818961812this workArSnH30,6-Xylyl58255818961812this work		<i>o</i> -Tol	586				3
Ar_3SnBr p -Tol 607 36 $2,6$ -Xylyl 570 544 this work $3,5$ -xylyl 580 3 Mes 580 3 Ar_2SnCl_2 1 -Naph 770 736 16 Ar_2SnCl_2 1 -Naph 770 736 16 Ar_2SnCl_2 1 -Naph 788 753 16 Ph 1118 35 35 o -Tol 1087 1039 this work $2,6$ -Xylyl 1062 1015 this work $2,6$ -Xylyl 1062 1015 this work Ar_3SnH Ph 1127 1074 this work Ar_3SnH_2 Ph 1936 35 Ar_2SnH_2 Ph 1928 35 Ar_3SnH_3 543 518 1947 1851 16 Ar_3SnH_3 $2,6$ -Xylyl 580 555 1898 1814 this work		<i>m</i> -Tol	591				3
$2,6-Xy y $ 570544this work $3,5-xy y $ 5803 Mes 5803 Ar_2SnCl_2 1-Naph77073616 $2-Naph$ 78875316 Ph 111835 o -Tol10871039this work $ArSnCl_3$ 2,4-Xy y 11011052this work $ArSnCl_3$ 2,6-Xy y 10621015this work Ar_3SnH Ph112710741697this work Ar_3SnH_2 Ph19363535 Ar_2SnH_2 Ph19283516 Ar_2SnH_3 5445201937185116 Ar_2SnH_3 5435181947185516 Ar_3SnH_4 54355518981814this work Ar_2SnH_3 0-Tol56854319081824this work Ar_2SnH_3 0-Tol56854319081824this work $ArSnH_3$ 0-Tol56854319081824this work $ArSnH_3$ 0-Tol56854319081824this work $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xy y 58055518981814this work $ArSnH_3$ 0-Tol56854319081824this work $ArSnH_3$ 0-Tol56854319081824this work $ArSnH_3$ 0.70158255818961812this work $ArSnH_3$ 0.701<	Ar₃SnBr	<i>p</i> -Tol	607				36
$3,5$ -xylyl5803 Mes 5803 Ar_2SnCl_2 1-Naph77073616 2 -Naph78875316 Ph 111835 o -Tol10871039this work $2,6$ -Xylyl11011052this work $2,6$ -Xylyl10621015this work Ar_3SnH Ph11271074this work Ar_3SnH Ph193635 Ar_2SnH_2 Ph192835 Ar_2SnH_2 Ph54452019371851 Ar_2SnH_3 5181947185516 Ar_2SnH_3 56854319081824this work Ar_2SnH_3 56854319081824this work Ar_2SnH_3 $2,4$ -Xylyl58055518981814this work $ArSnH_3$ $2,4$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work $ArSnH_3$ $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work		2,6-Xylyl	570	544			this work
Mes5803 Ar_2SnCl_2 1-Naph770736162-Naph78875316Ph111835 o -Tol10871039this work $arSnCl_3$ 2,4-Xylyl11011052this work $2,6-Xylyl10621015this work1-Naph11271074this workAr_3SnHPh193635Ar_2SnH_2Ph5445201937Ar_2SnH_3Ph192835Ar_2SnH_3Ph192035Ar_2SnH_3Ph192035Ar_2SnH_35435181947ArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58055518981814ArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58055518981814this workArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58255818961812this workArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58255818961812this workArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58255818961812this workArSnH_32,4-Xylyl58255818961812this work$		3,5-xylyl	580				3
Ar_2SnCl_2 1-Naph770736162-Naph78875316Ph111835 o -Tol10871039this work2,4-Xylyl11011052this work2,6-Xylyl10621015this work1-Naph11271074this work1-Naph112710741697 Ar_3SnH Ph1936352,6-Xylyl53451217761697 Ar_3SnH_2 Ph192835 Ar_2SnH_2 1-Naph54452019371851 Ar_SnH_3 5181947185516 $2,-Naph$ 543518194735 $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58055518981814this work $2,6-Xylyl$ 58255818961812this work $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58055518981814this work $2,6-Xylyl$ 58255818961812this work		Mes	580				3
$hr_2 sin L_2$ 2-Naph78875316Ph111835 o -Tol10871039this work $arsnCl_3$ 2,4-Xylyl11011052this work2,6-Xylyl10621015this work1-Naph11271074this work $Ar_3 SnH$ Ph193635 $Ar_3 SnH$ Ph193635 $Ar_3 SnH$ Ph19361697 $Ar_3 SnH$ Ph192835 $Ar_2 SnH_2$ 1-Naph54452019371851 $Ar_2 SnH_2$ 1-Naph5435181947185516 $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl56854319081824this work $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58055518981814this work $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58255818961812this work $ArSnH_3$ 0.00 foundnot found19341849this work	Ar SpCl	1-Naph	770	736			16
Ph111835 o -Tol10871039this work $2,4$ -Xylyl11011052this work $2,6$ -Xylyl10621015this work 1 -Naph11271074this work Ar_3SnH Ph193635 $2,6$ -Xylyl53451217761697 Ar_3SnH_2 Ph192835 Ar_2SnH_2 1-Naph54452019371851 Ar_2SnH_2 1-Naph543518194735 $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58055518981814this work $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58255818961812this work $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work	AI25IICI2	2-Naph	788	753			16
$arsnCl_3$ o -Tol10871039this work $2,4$ -Xylyl11011052this work $2,6$ -Xylyl10621015this work 1 -Naph11271074this work Ar_3SnH Ph193635 $2,6$ -Xylyl53451217761697 $2,6$ -Xylyl53451217761697 $2,6$ -Xylyl53451217761697 Ar_3SnH_2 Ph192835 Ar_2SnH_2 1-Naph5445201937 Ph 192035 $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl5685431908 $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58055518981814 $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work $2,6$ -Xylyl58255818961812this work		Ph	1118				35
ArSnCl32,4-Xylyl11011052this work2,6-Xylyl10621015this work1-Naph11271074this workAr_3SnHPh1936352,6-Xylyl53451217761697Ph192835Ar_2SnH21-Naph54452019371851Ar_2SnH21-Naph54351819471855162-Naph54351819473516ArSnH32,4-Xylyl56854319081824this workArSnH32,6-Xylyl58255818961812this work1-Naphnot foundnot found19341849this work		<i>o</i> -Tol	1087	1039			this work
$2,6-Xy y $ 10621015this work1-Naph11271074this work Ar_3SnH Ph193635 $2,6-Xy y $ 53451217761697 $2,6-Xy y $ 53451217761697 Ar_2SnH_2 Ph192835 Ar_2SnH_2 1-Naph5445201937 Ph 1920160 $2-Naph$ 5435181947 Ph 192035 $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xy y 580555 $2,6-Xy y $ 5825581896 $1-Naph$ not foundnot found1934 $1-Naph$ not found19341849	ArSnCl₃	2,4-Xylyl	1101	1052			this work
$1-Naph$ 11271074this work Ar_3SnH Ph193635 $2,6-Xylyl$ 53451217761697this work Ph 192835 Ar_2SnH_2 1-Naph5445201937185116 $2-Naph$ 5435181947185516 Ph 192035 $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl56854319081824this work $ArSnH_3$ 2,4-Xylyl58055518981814this work $1-Naph$ not foundnot found19341849this work		2,6-Xylyl	1062	1015			this work
Ar ₃ SnH Ph 1936 35 2,6-Xylyl 534 512 1776 1697 this work Ph 1928 35 35 35 Ar ₂ SnH ₂ 1-Naph 544 520 1937 1851 16 2-Naph 543 518 1947 1855 16 2-Naph 543 518 1947 1855 16 Ph 1920 35 35 16 35 ArSnH ₃ 2,4-Xylyl 568 543 1908 1824 this work 2,6-Xylyl 582 558 1896 1812 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work		1-Naph	1127	1074			this work
Ar ₃ Sin 2,6-Xylyl 534 512 1776 1697 this work Ph 1928 35 Ar ₂ SnH ₂ 1-Naph 544 520 1937 1851 16 2-Naph 543 518 1947 1855 16 2-Naph 543 518 1947 1855 16 Ph 1920 35 35 16 Ph 1920 35 16 Ph 1920 35 16 ArSnH ₃ 2,4-Xylyl 568 543 1908 1824 this work ArSnH ₃ 2,4-Xylyl 580 555 1898 1814 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work	Ar Coll	Ph			1936		35
Ph 1928 35 Ar_2SnH_2 1-Naph 544 520 1937 1851 16 2-Naph 543 518 1947 1855 16 Ph 1920 35 35 35 16 Ph 1920 35 35 35 ArSnH_3 2,4-Xylyl 568 543 1908 1824 this work 2,6-Xylyl 582 558 1896 1812 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work	ΑΙ ₃ 5ΠΠ	2,6-Xylyl	534	512	1776	1697	this work
Ar_2SnH2 1-Naph 544 520 1937 1851 16 2-Naph 543 518 1947 1855 16 Ph 1920 35 35 35 35 <i>o</i> -Tol 568 543 1908 1824 this work ArSnH3 2,4-Xylyl 580 555 1898 1814 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work		Ph			1928		35
2-Naph 543 518 1947 1855 16 Ph 1920 35 o-Tol 568 543 1908 1824 this work ArSnH ₃ 2,4-Xylyl 580 555 1898 1814 this work 2,6-Xylyl 582 558 1896 1812 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work	Ar ₂ SnH ₂	1-Naph	544	520	1937	1851	16
Ph 1920 35 o-Tol 568 543 1908 1824 this work ArSnH ₃ 2,4-Xylyl 580 555 1898 1814 this work 2,6-Xylyl 582 558 1896 1812 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work		2-Naph	543	518	1947	1855	16
o-Tol 568 543 1908 1824 this work ArSnH ₃ 2,4-Xylyl 580 555 1898 1814 this work 2,6-Xylyl 582 558 1896 1812 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work		Ph			1920		35
ArSnH ₃ 2,4-Xylyl 580 555 1898 1814 this work 2,6-Xylyl 582 558 1896 1812 this work 1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work		<i>o</i> -Tol	568	543	1908	1824	this work
2,6-Xylyl 582 558 1896 1812 this work	ArSnH₃	2,4-Xylyl	580	555	1898	1814	this work
1-Naph not found not found 1934 1849 this work		2,6-Xylyl	582	558	1896	1812	this work
		1-Naph	not found	not found	1934	1849	this work

* Data from ¹³C spectra, ** Data from ¹H spectra

As a general trend the following sequence of ${}^{1}J^{13}C^{-119}Sn$ coupling can be detected:

Additionally, it can be shown that the coupling constants differ only slightly regarding tetraarylstannes and values lie in a range of 521 - 537 Hz (${}^{1}J^{13}C^{-119}Sn$). Regarding Ar₃SnCl, *ipso* coupling constants can be found in a range of 596 - 625 Hz. For the corresponding bromo derivative (Ar₃SnBr) values are observed to be slightly decreased, lying in a range from 570 - 607 Hz. Furthermore, it can be observed that all *para*-substituted aryl ligands exhibit the highest ¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C coupling constants. Moreover, it is obvious that substituents harboring high electronegativity, like halides, lead to an increase of ¹*J*-values so that a growing number of chloro atoms bond to the tin leads to maximum ¹³C-¹¹⁹Sn coupling constants up to 1127 Hz (ArSnCl₃). Tinhydrides do not show a significant difference of carbon-tin coupling constants from Ar₄Sn compounds, but slightly increase with the number of hydrogen bond to the tin from 534 - 582 Hz. However, ¹H-¹¹⁹Sn coupling constants of all mentioned hydrides range from 1776 - 1937 Hz, where neither an influence of the organic substituent's size nor of the number of hydrogens bond can be detected so far.

3.9 Conclusion and Outlook

During this work novel trichloro arylstannanes where successfully synthesized by Kozeschkow⁸ redistribution reactions serving as starting compounds for the preparation of hitherto quite neglected and little described aryltin trihydrides. Synthesis of *ortho* substituted aryltin trihydrides as a novel family of tin compound was realized using LAH in ether.¹¹ Additionally, unpublished aryltin di- and monohalides were prepared and characterized. A better understanding of synthetic and structural factors influencing the synthesis and characterization of those organostannanes was achieved. Furthermore, initial polymerization attempts of generated aryltin trihydrides was carried out in the presence of TMEDA described by Lechner³¹ resulting in black, amorphous solids. The generated polymers are insoluble in common organic solvents and decompose at ambient conditions. Elemental analysis showed that organic moieties get lost during the reaction progress. Additionally, first measurements *via* EDX showed a Sn ratio of 60% and suggest a polymer composition of (R_{0.95}Sn)_x. Based on these findings further investigation on the polymerization behavior, as well as on the properties can be declared as future goals.

57

3.10 References

- ¹ Pikina, E. A., Talalavea, T. V., Kozeschkow, K. A., *Zhumal Obshchei Khimii*, **1938**, *8*, 1844.
- ² Schneider-Koglin, C., Mathiasch, B., Dräger, M., J. Organomet. Chem., **1994**, 469, 25.
- ³ Wharf, I., Simard, M. G., *J. Organomet. Chem*, **1997**, *532*, 1.
- ⁴ Krause, E., Schmitz, M., Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., **1919**, 52B, 2150.
- ⁵ Srivastava, T. N., Bhattacharya, S. N., Z. Anorg. Allg. Chem., **1966**, 344, 102.
- ⁶ Gilman, H., Rosenberg, S. D., J. Org. Chem., **1953**, 18, 1554.
- ⁷ Bähr, G., Gelius, R., Chem. Ber., **1958**, *91*, 818.
- ⁸ Kozeschkow, K. A., Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., **1934**, *5*, 717.
- ⁹ Janiak, C., Schwichtenberg, M., Hahn, E. F., J. Organomet. Chem., **1989**, 365, 37.
- ¹⁰ Saito, M., Hashimoto, H., Tajima, T., Ikeda, M., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **2007**, *692*, 2729.
- ¹¹ Hermann, U. Synthese und Strukturen ketten- und ringförmiger Silicium-Zinn-
- Verbindungen, 2000, PhD Thesis, Universität Dortmund.
- ¹² Belsky, V. K., Simoneko, A. A., Reiksfeld, V. O., Saratov., I. E., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1983**, 244, 125.
- ¹³ Karipides.,S., Oertel, M., Acta Crystallogr., Sect. B: Struct. Crystallogr. Cryst. Chem., **1978**, 334, 3494.
- ¹⁴ Karipides, S., Wolfe, K., Acta Crystallogr., Sect. B: Struct. Crystallogr. Cryst. Chem, **1975**, 31, 605.
- ¹⁵ Wharf, I., Bélanger-Gariépy, F., *Acta Crystallogr., Sect. E: Struct. Rep. Online*, **2003**, *59*, m661.
- ¹⁶ Shaikh, N. S., Parkin, S., Lehmler, H.-J., Organometallics, **2006**, 25, 4207.
- ¹⁷ Pichler, J., Uhlig, F., *PhD Thesis*, Universität Graz, unpublished results
- ¹⁸ Preut, H., Huber, F., Acta Crystallogr., Sect. B.: Struct. Crystallogr. Cryst. Chem., **1979**, 35, 744.
- ¹⁹ Bokii, N. G., Zhakarova, G. N., Struchkov, Y. T., *J. Struct. Chem.*, **1970**, *11*, 895.
- ²⁰ Geller, J. M., Butler, I. S., Morin, F. G., Wharf, I., Bélanger-Gariépy, F., *Can. J. Chem.*, **2003**, *81*, 1187.
- ²¹ Geller, J., Wharf, I., Bélanger-Gariépy, F., Lebuis, A. M., Butler, I. S., Gilson, D. F. R., *Acta Crystalogr., Sect. C: Cryts. Struct. Commun.*, **2002**, *58*, m466.
- ²² Ahmad, S. U., Beckmann, J., Duthie, A., Chem. Asian. J., **2010**, *5*, 160.

²³ Johnson, B. P, Almstatter, S., Dielmann, F., Bodensteiner, M., Scheer, M., Z. Anorg. Allg. *Chem.*, **2010**, *1275*.

²⁴ Greene, P. T., Bryan, R. F., J. Chem. Soc. A , **1971**, 2549.

²⁵ Baxter J. L., Holt, E. M., Zuckerman, J. J., Organometallics, **1985**, *4*, 255.

²⁶ Krauter, T., Neumuller, B., Z. Naturforsch., B: Chem. Sci., **1998**, 53, 503.

²⁷ Sharma, H. K., Cervantes-Lee, F., Mahmoud, J. S., Pannell, K. H., *Organometallics*, **1999**, *18*, 399.

²⁸ M.Weidenbruch, K.Schafers, S.Pohl, W.Saak, K.Peters, H.G.von Schnering, *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1988**, *346*, 171.

²⁹ Schittelkopf, K., Fischer, R. C., Meyer, S., Wifling, P., Uhlig, F., Appl. Organomet. Chem.,

2010, *24*, 897.

³⁰ Lechner, M.-L., Trummer, M., Bräunlich, I., Smith, P., Caseri, W., Uhlig, F., *Appl. Organomet. Chem.*, **2011**, *25*, 769.

³¹ Imori, T., Lu, V., Cai, H., Tilley, T D., J. Am. Chem. Soc., **1995**, *117*, 9931.

³² Choffat, F., Smith, P., Caseri, W., J. Mater. Chem., **2005**, 15, 1789.

³³ Choffat, F., Buchmüller, Y., Mensing, C., Smith, P., Caseri, W. R., *J. Inorg. Organomet.*

Polym. Mater., 2009, 19, 166.

³⁴ Choffat, F., Fornera, S., Smith, P., Caseri, W., *R. Adv. Mater.*, **2008**, *20*, 2225.

³⁵ Wrackmeyer, B., Ann. Rep. NMR. Spectros., **1985**, *16*, 73.

³⁶ Wharf, I., *Inorganica Chimica Acta*, **1989**, *159*, 41.

³⁷ Brown, P., Mahon, M. F., Molloy, K. C., *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1992**, *435*, 265.

³⁸ Schneider, C., Dräger, M., J. Organomet. Chem., **1993**, 448, 29.

4 Experimental Section

4.1 General and Used Chemicals

All reactions, unless otherwise stated were carried out under inert conditions using Schlenk technique and nitrogen as inert gas. In order to ensure dry atmosphere the used nitrogen passed a molecular sieve (4Å) to remove residual moisture. All dried and deoxygenated solvents were obtained from a solvent drying plant (Innovative Technology, inc). Other organic solvents for synthesis were purchased at VWR and Lactan.

All chemicals from commercial source were utilized without further purification, unless otherwise mentioned.

4.1.1 Chemicals Used in Synthesis

Table 19: Used chemicals and commercial sources					
compound	provider				
1-bromo-2-methyl-benzene	Sigma Aldrich				
1-bromo-2,4-dimethylbenzene	Alfa Aeser				
2-bromo-1,3-dimethylbenzene	Alfa Aeser				
magnesium tunings	Sigma Aldrich				
LAH pellets	Sigma Aldrich				
zinc powder	Acros Organics				
tributyl tinhydride	Merck				
<i>n</i> BuLi 2.5 M in hexane	Sigma Aldrich				
9-bromoanthracene	Sigma Aldrich				
tin dichloride	Fischer Chemical				
1-bromonaphtaline	Merck				
LDA	Sigma Aldrich				

4.2 Analytics

4.2.1 NMR-Spectroscopy

¹H-, ¹³C- and ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectra were recorded on a Mercury 300 MHz spectrometer from Varian at 25°C not otherwise mentioned.

Table 20: frequencies of observed nuclei (300 MHz spectrometer)				
nucleus	frequency [MHz]			
1 ¹ H	300.22			
¹³ C	75.5			
¹¹⁹ Sn	111.92			

Only for one compound ¹H and ¹³C-NMR spectra were recorded on a Varian Inova 500 MHz spectrometer at 25°C . The applied software was VNMRJ 2.2 D.

Table 21: Frequencies of observed nuclei (500 MHz spectrometer)				
nucleus	frequency [MHz]			
¹ H	499.98			
¹³ C	125.69			

Chemical shifts are given in parts per million (ppm) relative to TMS ($\delta = 0$ ppm) regarding ¹³C and ¹H and relative to SnMe₄ in the case of ¹¹⁹Sn. Coupling constants (*J*) are reported in Hertz (Hz). The spectra were processed and analyzed in MestReNova 5.2.5. As solvents C₆D₆ or CDCl₃ are used if not otherwise mentioned.

4.2.2 Elemental Analysis

All elemental analysis were performed with an Elementar Vario EL using sulfanilic acid as standard.

4.2.3 X-Ray Analysis

XRD data collection was performed on a Bruker Apex II diffractometer with use of Mo K α radiation (λ =0.71073 Å) and a CDD area detector. Empirical absorption corrections were applied using SADABS.^{1,2} The structures were solved with use of either direct methods or the Patterson option in SHELXS and refined by the full-matrix least-squares procedures in SHELXL.^{3,4} Non-hydrogen atoms were refined anisotropically. Hydrogen atoms were located in calculated positions corresponding to standard bond lengths and angles.

4.2.4 ICP-AES Measurements

Microwave assisted chemical combustion was carried out with 6 ml HCl conc. suprapur and 0.5 ml HNO₃ using a Multiwave 3000, 1400 W during 15 minutes. ICP-AES were carried out with a Spectro Cyros Vision EOP end on plasma.

4.2.5 SEM and EDX Measurments

SEM measurements were carried out in a Vega 3 SBU SEM from Tescan equipped with a wolfram cathode. For qualitative assignment of the sample composition EDX on an Oxford Instruments, model INCA x-act was carried out.

4.2.6 Melting Point Measurements

For these measurements a Stuart Scientific SMP 10 (up to 300°C) was used and a threefold determination carried out.

4.2.7 ATR Measurments

For ATR measurements a Bruker Alpha-P was used.

4.2.8 MS-Measurements

Compounds were ionized *via* electron impact (70 eV) ionization. Mass spectra were recorded on a Waters GCT Premier equipped with direct insertion (DI).

4.2.9 TGA and DTA Measurements

TGA and DTA measurements were carried out using a STA 449C Jupiter from Netzsch. The performed temperature program lay between 20-550°C with a heating rate of 10°C/min. As purge gas helium was used.

4.3 Synthesis

For all naphtyl and anthracenyl moieties the NMR assignment for carbon and hydrogen atoms is according to the IUPAC numbering.



Figure 13: IUPAC numbering of naphthyl and anthracenyl substituents

Tetra-o-tolylstannane (1)⁵



A flask equipped with a dropping funnel and a reflux condenser was charged with 15.19 g (1.25 eq., 0.63 mol) magnesium tunings in 500 ml Et₂O as well as the dropping funnel was filled with a solution of 60.1 ml 1-bromo-2-methyl-benzene (1 eq., 0.5 mol, 85.51 g) in 60 ml Et₂O. The Grignard reaction started after addition of 2 ml dibromoethane and the ethereal solution was added drop wise so that gentle reflux continued. After completion of the addition the reaction mixture was stirred overnight. A second flask furnished with a mechanical stirrer and a reflux condenser was charged with 12.3 ml SnCl₄ (0.21 eq., 27.35 g) in 350 ml Et₂O under ice cooling. Then the Grignard solution was added *via* a cannula and the mixture stirred at room temperature overnight and subsequently refluxed for 2 h to obtain a slightly yellow suspension. The solvent was evaporated to give a greenish solid which was suspended in toluene and filtered hot through celite. Again the solvent was removed under reduced pressure to obtain 50.73 g of a pale green solid. According to the NMR spectra measured in CDCl₃ the side product can be defined as *o*-tol₃SnBr. Hence, **1** is gained with a purity of 21% and yield of 18% (10.65 g, 22 mmol).

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -122.6 (**1**), -54.0 (*o*-tol₃SnBr)

Tetra-2,4-xylylstannane (2)^{5,6}



A flask equipped with a dropping funnel and a reflux condenser was charged with 15.19 g (1.25 eq., 0.63 mol) magnesium tunings in 350 ml Et₂O as well as the dropping funnel was filled with a solution of 67.5 ml 1-bromo-2,4-dimethylbenzene (1 eq., 0.5 mol, 92.53 g) in 100 ml Et₂O. The Grignard reaction started after addition of 2 ml dibromoethane and the ethereal solution was added drop wise so that gentle reflux continued. After completion of the addition the reaction mixture was refluxed for 3.5 h and then stirred overnight at room temperature. A second flask furnished with a mechanical stirrer and a reflux condenser was charged with 12.3 ml SnCl₄ (0.21 eq., 0.11 mol, 27.4 g) in 500 ml Et₂O under ice cooling. Then the Grignard solution was added via a cannula and the mixture stirred at room temperature overnight. Subsequently, the reaction mixture was refluxed for 2 h to obtain a pale brown suspension. The solvent was evaporated to afford a yellowish syrup which was taken up in pentane in order to precipitate the salt. The mixture was then filtered through celite and the solvent evaporated to give a pale yellow solid, which was subjected to fractionated distillation. The purification afforded 27.67 g of a brownish solid which according to the NMR spectra measured in CDCl₃ can be assigned as followed: 87% Ar₃SnCl, 9% Ar₂SnCl₂ as well as 4% of the desired product 2, which was not further isolated. A theoretical yield of 4% (1.1 g, 2 mmol) can be calculated.

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -119.3 (**2**),-40.55 (2,4-xylyl₃SnCl), -73.27 (2,4-xylyl₂SnCl₂)

64
Tribromo-2,6-xylylstannan (3)⁵



A flask equipped with a dropping funnel and a reflux condenser was charged with 7.59 g (1.25 eq., 0.31 mol) magnesium tunings in 300 ml Et₂O as well as the dropping funnel was filled with a solution of 33.3 ml 2-bromo-1,3-dimethylbenzene (1 eq., 0.25 mol, 46.27 g) in 60 ml Et₂O. The Grignard reaction started after addition of 1 ml dibromoethane and the ethereal solution was added drop wise so that gentle reflux continued. After completion of the addition the reaction mixture was refluxed for 1 h and then stirred at room temperature over night. Subsequently it was again refluxed for 3 h. A second flask furnished with a mechanical stirrer and a reflux condenser was charged with 4.68 ml SnCl₄ (0.16 eq., 0.04 mol, 10.42 g) in 500 ml Et₂O under ice cooling. Then the Grignard solution was evaporated to afford a white solid which then was Soxhlet extracted during 2 d using pentane to afford 16.88 g of a white solid, which subsequently was subjected to recrystallization from pentane to afford colorless crystals. The crystals were identified by X-ray analysis as tribromo-2,6-xylylstannane in 19% yield (16.54 g, 32 mmol).

¹H-NMR (C₆D₆) δ: 7.01-6.92 (t, 1H, J_{5,4}= 7.5 Hz, H5), 6.86-6.78 (d, 2H, J_{4,5}= 7.5 Hz, H4), 2.41 (s, 6H, H3)

¹³C-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 144.62 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 570 Hz, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 544 Hz, C1), 144.13 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 43 Hz, C2), 129.75 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 11 Hz, C5), 128.23 (³J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 53 Hz, C4), 25.67 (³J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 41 Hz, C3)

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -131.6

CHN-analysis: found (C: 54.67 %, H: 5.48 %), required (C: 56.07 %, H: 5.29 %)

Mp: 175°C

Trichloro-*o*-tolylstannane (4)⁷



48.14 g of the mixed product **1** were combined with 22.8 ml SnCl₄ (50.67 g, 1.3 mol, 6.2 eq. calculated for **1**) in a Schlenk flask furnished with a reflux condenser. The mixture was heated up to 150°C using an oil bath and stirred for 2 h to obtain complete conversion which was monitored *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy. The excess of SnCl₄ was removed under reduced pressure to obtain a dark brown liquid. Subsequently the mixture was subjected to fractionated distillation under reduced pressure to afford 12.19 g of a product mixture containing **4** in 99% purity and 1% dichloro-(bis-*o*-tolylstannane) as side product. A theoretical yield of 7% (12.07 g, 38 mmol) referring to 2-bromotoluene can be calculated. ¹H-NMR (CDCl₃) δ : 7.69-7.53 (m, 2H, H5, H7), 7.50-7.42 (m, 2H, H4, H6), 2.70 (m,3H, CH₃) ¹³C-NMR (CDCl₃) δ : 143.1 (²*J*(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³*C*)= 75 Hz, ²*J*(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³*C*)= 72 Hz, C2 or C7), 136.9 (¹*J*(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³*C*)= 1087 Hz, ¹*J*(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³*C*)= 1039 Hz, C1), 134.41 ((²*J*(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³*C*)= 77 Hz, ¹*J*(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³*C*)= 74 Hz, C2 or C7), 135.53 (⁴*J*(¹¹⁹/11⁷Sn-¹³*C*)= 24 Hz, C5), 131.71 (³*J*(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³*C*)= 119 Hz, ³*J*(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³*C*)= 114 Hz, C4 or C6), 127.34 (³*J*(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³*C*)= 122, ³*J*(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³*C*)=125 Hz, C4 od. C6), 24.71 ((³*J*(¹¹⁹/11⁷Sn-¹³*C*)=54 Hz, C3)

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -54.4 (**4**), - 114.6 *o*-tol₂SnCl₂

Total Sn-determination via ICP-AES: found (Sn: 33.4 %) required (Sn: 37.5%)

Trichloro-2,4-xylylstannane (5)⁷



22.55 g of the mixed product **2** were combined with 16.85 ml SnCl₄ (37.52 g, 0.14 mol, 3.4 eq. calculated for 2,4-xylyl₃SnCl in a Schlenk flask furnished with a reflux condenser. The mixture was heated up to 170°C using an oil bath and stirred for 3h to obtain complete conversion which was monitored *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy. The dark brown mixture was then subjected to fractionated distillation under reduced pressure to afford 30.24 g of **5** in 98% purity (18% yield related to 4-bromo-m-xylol) as a yellowish liquid.

¹H-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: 7.53 (d, 1H, *J*_{7,8}=7.6 Hz, H8), 7.29-7.23 (m, 2H, H7, H4), 2.66 (s, 3H, C3H₃), 2.46 (s, 3H, C6H₃)

¹³C-NMR (CDCl₃) δ : 144.23 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 24 Hz, C5), 142.81 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 78 Hz, C2), 134.21 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 80 Hz, C8), 133.48 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 1101 Hz, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 1052 Hz, C1), 132.50 (C4 or C7), 128.01 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 127 Hz, C4 or C7), 24.44 (C3), 21.70 (C6) ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ : -57.03

CHN-analysis: found (C: 28.38 %, H: 2.64 %), required (C: 29.10 %, H: 2.75 %)

Trichloro-2,6-xylylstannane (6)⁷



9.28 g of **3** were combined with 7.05 ml SnCl₄ (15.69 g, 60 mmol, 3.4 eq) in a Schlenk flask furnished with a reflux condenser which immediately leads to a deep red color change. The mixture was heated up to 190°C using an oil bath and stirred for 4h to obtain complete conversion which was monitored *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy. The excess of SnCl₄ was removed under reduced pressure and the remaining mixture was subjected to distillation under reduced pressure to afford 10.53 g of **6** as white crystals (0.03 mol, 44%).

¹H-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: 7.42-7.37 (1H, t, *J*_{5,4}= 7.5 Hz, H5), 7.32-7.08 (2H, d, *J*_{4,5}=7.5 Hz, H4), 2.72 - 2.68 (6H, m, CH₃)

¹³C-NMR (CDCl₃) δ : 143.29 (²J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 76, ²J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 72 Hz, C2), 138.10 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 1062 Hz, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 1015, C1), 132.48(⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 23 Hz, C5), 129.92 (³J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 123 Hz, ³J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 117 Hz, C4), 24.47 (³J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 57 Hz, ³J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 55 Hz, C3)

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -88.18

Melting range: 56-59°C

CHN-analysis: found (C: 29.45 %, H: 2.66 %), required (C: 29.10 %, H: 2.75 %)

Tetra-1-naphthylstannane (7)



To a solution of 5 ml 1-bromonaphthalene (7.4 g, 35 mmol, 1 eq.) in 50 ml Et₂O 14.3 ml of a 2.5 M *n*-BuLi solution in hexane (1 eq, 0.035 mol) was added *via* a syringe at -80° to immediately obtain an orange reaction mixture. The solution was stirred under cooling for 2 h and then allowed to warm to room temperature. A second Schlenk flask was charged with 4.18 ml SnCl₄ (1 eq., 9.31 g, 0.035 mol) in 20 ml Et₂O at ice cooling and the lithiated solution was added *via* a cannula. The resulting suspension was stirred at room temperature over the weekend and subsequently the solvent was removed under reduced pressure. The obtained residue was taken up in 50 ml toluene and the salts were filtered. Then the solvent was evaporated to obtain a light brown solid which was taken up in 250 ml CH₂Cl₂ and 150 ml H₂O dest. were added. The phases were separated and the aqueous phase extracted twice with 100 ml CH₂Cl₂. The combined organic phases were dried over Na₂SO₄ and the solvent was removed under reduced pressure to afford a grey solid which was recrystallized from ethylacetate. 3.58 g **7** (5.7 mmol, 64%) as white crystals.

¹H-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 8.34-8.25 (d, 1H, $J_{8,9}$ =8.3 Hz, H8), 8.21-7.95 (d, 1H, $J_{2,3}$ = 6.5 Hz, ${}^{3}J({}^{119}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 68 Hz, ${}^{3}J({}^{117}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 54 Hz, H2), 7.64-7.55 (d, 1H, $J_{6,7}$ =8.1 Hz, H5), 7.55-7.47 (d, 1H, $J_{3,4}$ =8.0 Hz, H4), 7.08-6.94 (m, 2H, H6, H7), 6.84-6.74 (dd, 1H, H3)

¹³C-NMR (C_6D_6) δ : 140.35 (¹*J*(¹¹⁹*Sn*-¹³*C*)=520 Hz, 1*J*(¹¹⁷*Sn*-¹³*C*)= 497 Hz, C1), 139.02 (³*J*(^{119/117}*Sn*-¹³*C*)= 34 Hz, C4a), 137.20 (²*J*(¹¹⁹*Sn*-¹³*C*)= 38 Hz, ²*J*(¹¹⁷*Sn*-¹³*C*)= 47 Hz, C2), 134.16 (²*J*(^{119/117}*Sn*-¹³*C*)= 37 Hz, C8a), 130.23 (³*J*(^{119/117}*Sn*-¹³*C*)= 32 Hz, C8), 130.00 (⁴*J*(^{119/117}*Sn*-¹³*C*)= 12 Hz, C4), 129.00 (C5), 126.43 (C6 or C7), 126.07 (C6 or C7), 125.72 (C3).

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C₆D₆) δ: -118.8.

Melting range: 246-248°C.

CHN-analysis: found (C: 75.36 %, H: 4.40 %), required (C: 76.58 %, H: 4.50 %)



3.00 g of **7** (4.78 mmol) were combined with 1.67 ml SnCl₄ (3.73 g, 14.3 mmol, 3 eq.) in a Schlenk flask furnished with a reflux condenser. The mixture was heated up to 190°C using an oil bath and stirred for 1.5 h to obtain complete conversion which was monitored *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy. The excess of SnCl₄ was removed under reduced pressure and the remaining black solid was taken up in 50 ml CH₂Cl₂. The suspension was filtered through celite and the solvent was evaporated under reduced pressure. The obtained white solid was recrystallized from toluene to afford 3.43 g **8** as white crystals (9.73 mmol, 51%).

¹H-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: 8.13-8.06 (d, 1H, *J*_{3,4}=8.3 Hz, H3), 8.06-7.95 (m, 2H, H8a, H7), 7.93-7.88 (d, 1H, *J*_{5,6}=7.0 Hz, H5), 7.75-7.59 (2dd, 3H, H4,H4a,H8).

¹³C-NMR (CDCl₃) δ : 136.89 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 1127, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 1074, C1), 134.91 (³J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 84 Hz, C6), 134.70 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 102 Hz, C2), 134.42 (⁵J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 61 Hz, C5), 133.36 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 28 Hz, C3), 129.4 (⁴J(^{191/117}Sn-¹³C)= 21 Hz, C7), 128.56 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 7 Hz, C4a), 127.48 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 59 Hz, C8a), 127.38 (C4), 125.81 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 142, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 136 Hz, C8)

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -55.0

CHN-analysis: found (C: 33.99 %, H: 1.87 %), required (C: 34.10 %, H: 2.00 %)

Attempts towards Dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane (9)

a) Synthesis via the lithiation route



4 g 9-bromoanthracene (15.6 mmol) in 150 ml THF were treated with 1.8 ml *n*-BuLi (2.5 M in hexane, 15.6 mmol) at -70°C. The reaction mixture immediately turned orange. After 2 h stirring at -70°C the solution was transferred *via* a cannula into a suspension of $SnCl_4$ (1 eq., 15.6 mmol, 4.05 g, 1.8 ml) in 30 ml THF at 0°C. The mixture turned amber colored and was allowed to warm up to room temperature. After stirring for 3 h the solvent was removed under reduced pressure and the resulting solid taken up in toluene to precipitate salts. The supernatant red solution was filtered of and again the solvent removed under reduced pressure to obtain 2.68 g of a brownish powder.

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -49.4

b) Temperature study (lithiation route)

The temperature study was carried out regarding the lithiation route as described in **a**. Lithiation was always carried out at -78°C, whereas the temperature profile of the subsequent reaction (conversion with SnCl₄) was varied from -78°C to room temperature (-78°C, -50°C, 0°C, 25°C). In each experiment 2 g 9-bromoathracene (7.8 mmol) in 15 ml THF were cooled down to -78°C. Subsequently, 3.1 ml *n*-BuLi solution (2.5 M in hexane, 1 eq., 7.8 mmol) was added drop wise *via* a syringe to obtain an orange suspension. The reaction mixture was stirred for 1 h and then transferred *via* a cannula into a suspension of SnCl₄ (1 eq., 7.8 mmol, 2.03 g, 0.9 ml) in 15 ml THF at the appropriate temperature. The reaction mixture was stirred at the certain temperature for 2 h and then allowed to warm to room temperature. The reaction progress was monitored *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy applying a microwork-up with CDCl₃. Therefore, 5 ml of the reaction mixture were transformed into a suspension into a suspension of some superature into a suspension of some temperature.

taken up in CDCl₃ to precipitate salts. The supernatant liquid was subjected to ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy.

-78°C: ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -80-02, -47.11; **-50°C**: ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -255.5, -81.4; **0°C**: ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -81.8; **-25°C**: ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ: -81.7, -41.3

Furthermore, all reaction mixtures were subjected to a standard work up with toluene, removing the solvent and adding toluene to precipitate the salts. Then the supernatant liquid was separated and the solvent again removed under reduced pressure. In case of the reaction carried out at -78°C orange, rod like crystals of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane **9** were obtained. The resulting green product of the reaction carried out at 0°C was solid phase extracted with ether leading to no reasonable isolation.

c) Synthesis via the Grignard route 9a and subsequent hydrogenation 9b



A flask equipped with a dropping funnel and a reflux condenser was charged with 1.18 g magnesium tunings (1.25 eq., 48.6 mmol) in 60 ml THF as well as the funnel was filled with a solution of 10 g 9-bromoanthracene (1 eq., 38.9 mmol) in 60 ml THF. The reaction started after addition of 0.6 ml dibromoethane and the ethereal solution was added drop wise so that gentle reflux continued. The reaction was refluxed for 2 h. A second flask furnished with a reflux condenser was charged with 0.83 ml SnCl₄ (1.86 g, 7.2 mmol, 0.23 eq.) in 150 ml THF under ice cooling, Then the Grignard solution was added *via* a cannula and the reaction mixture stirred at room temperature for 2 d. The supernatant solution was decanted and the solvent removed under reduced pressure to afford 13.74 g of a red powder **9a**. ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (CDCl₃) δ : -124.3, -146.0

A flask furnished with reflux condenser and a dropping funnel was charged with 0.10 g LAH pellets (27.6 mmol) and 20 ml Et₂O. The suspension was stirred at room temperature until all of the LAH was dissolved. A solution of 1 g **9a** in 35 ml Et₂O was added slowly *via* the dropping funnel under cooling to -30°C. The reaction mixture turned slightly orange and was stirred for 2 h and then allowed to warm up to room temperature. Subsequently 25 ml of oxygen free water was added. Then the phases were separated *via* a cannula and the aqueous layer washed twice with 15 ml Et₂O. The combined organic phases were extracted with 25 ml saturated sodium tartrate in oxygen free water and the resulting organic phase dried over CaCl₂. Then the solvent was evaporated under reduced pressure to obtain 0.87 g of a yellowish powder **9b**.

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C₆D₆) δ: -272.2

d) Synthesis *via* oxidative addition⁸



0.5 g 9-bromoanthracene (19.4 mmol) in 10 ml THF were treated with 0.37 g $SnCl_2$ (1 eq., 19.4 mmol) and refluxed for 5 days. The reaction progress was monitored *via* ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR spectroscopy, showing no conversion at all.

e) Synthesis via activated tin(II) species 9⁹



5 g 9-bromoanthracene (19.4 mmol) in 30 ml THF were cooled to -78°C and 8.5 ml *n*-BuLi solution (2.5 M in hexane, 1.1 eq., 21.4 mmol) were added slowly *via* a syringe to obtain an orange suspension which was stirred for 1 h and then allowed to warm up to -30°C. Then, a

solution of 4.1 g SnCl₂ (1.1 eq., 21.4 mmol) in 25 ml was added *via* a syringe to result in a dark red, clear solution which was stirred for 2 h and allowed to warm up to room temperature. Subsequently 25 ml CCl₄ were added to obtain a slight orange solution which was stirred overnight at room temperature. The solvent was evaporated and the afforded orange syrup taken up in toluene to precipitate salts (orange solid). The supernatant solution was separated, and again the solvent removed under reduced pressure. ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR in CDCl₃ showed no signal, whereas the filtered orange solid showed a Sn signal at -45.4 ppm in CDCl₃. Therefore, it was subjected to a solid phase extraction using heptane to afford 60 mg of a pale yellow powder. Subsequent extraction with Et₂O led to a total amount of 0.31 g product. No characterization *via* NMR spectroscopy was possible due to its insolubility in CDCl3, C₆D₆, toluene, heptane, hexane, pentane, Et₂O, CCl₄, acetone, THF, DCM and ethyl acetate. A mass spectrum confirmed the formation of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane **9**.

HRMS calculated for $C_{28}H_{18}Cl_2Sn [M^+]$: 543.9800; found: 543.9802

Decomposition temperature (via DTA): 259.5 °C

CHN-analysis: found (C: 58.63 %, H: 3.12 %) required (C: 61.81.10 %, H: 2.74 %)

Tri-2,6-xylylstannane (10)



A flask furnished with reflux condenser and a dropping funnel was charged with 0.60 g LAH pellets (1.5 eq., 15.7 mmol) and 40 ml Et₂O. The suspension was stirred at room temperature until all of the LAH was dissolved. A solution of 5.38 g **3** (1 eq, 10.5 mmol) in 40 ml Et₂O was added slowly *via* the dropping funnel under cooling to -30°C. The reaction mixture was stirred for 2 h and allowed to warm up to room temperature. Subsequently 50 ml of oxygen free water was added. Then the phases were separated *via* a cannula and the aqueous layer washed twice with 40 ml Et₂O. The combined organic phases were extracted with 40 ml saturated sodium tartrate in oxygen free water and the resulting organic phase dried over CaCl₂. Then the solvent was evaporated under reduced pressure to obtain a white solid which was recrystallized from toluene to afford 2.59 g **10** (59.5 mmol, 57 %) as white crystals.

¹H-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 7.06-6.95 (t, 1H, $J_{5,4}$ =7.6 Hz, H5), 6.91-6.84 (d, 2H, $J_{4,5}$ = 7.6 Hz, ³ $J(^{119/117}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 28Hz, H4), 6.83 (s, ¹ $J(^{119}Sn^{-1}H)$ =1776 Hz, ¹ $J(^{117}Sn^{-1}H)$ =1697 Hz, SnH), 2.29 (s, 6H, C3) ¹³C-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 144.58 (² $J(^{119/117}Sn^{-13}C)$ = 32 Hz, C2), 142.48 ($J(^{119}Sn^{-13}C)$ = 534 Hz, ¹ $J(^{117}Sn^{-13}C)$ = 512 Hz, C1), 128.89 (⁴ $J(^{119/117}Sn^{-13}C)$ = 9 Hz, C5), 119.32 (C4), 25.43 (³ $J(^{119/117}Sn^{-13}C)$ = 42 Hz).

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : -286.60 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹H)=1765 Hz)

CHN-analysis: found (C: 67.94 %, H: 6.78 %), required (C: 66.24 %, H: 6.49 %)

o-Tolylstannane (11)¹⁰



A flask furnished with reflux condenser and a dropping funnel was charged with 15.8 ml LAHsolution (2 eq., 2M in Et₂O, 31.6 mmol) and 40 ml Et₂O. A solution of 4 g **4** (1 eq., 12.1 mmol) in 50 ml Et₂O was added slowly *via* the dropping funnel under cooling to -30°C. The reaction mixture was stirred for 3.5 h and allowed to warm up to room temperature. Subsequently 50 ml of oxygen free water was added. Then the phases were separated *via* a cannula and the aqueous layer washed twice with 40 ml Et₂O. The combined organic phases were extracted with 40 ml saturated sodium tartrate in oxygen free water and the resulting organic phase dried over CaCl₂. Then the solvent was evaporated gently at 200 mbar and subsequently the product distilled at room temperature at 10⁻⁴ mbar to obtain 1.68 g **11** (7.89 mmol, 50 %) as a colorless liquid.

¹H-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 7.53-7.27 (d, 1H, $J_{6,7}$ =6.1 Hz ² $J(^{119}Sn^{-1}H)$ =70 Hz, ² $J(^{117}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 57 Hz, H7), 7.22-7.07 (t, 1H, H5), 7.07-6.95 (m, 2H, H6, H4), 5.02 (s, 1H, ¹ $J(^{119}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 1908 Hz, ¹ $J(^{117}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 1824 Hz, SnH₃), 2.21 (s, 3H, H3).

¹³C-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 144.40 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)=32 Hz, C2), 138.67 (³J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)=45 Hz, ³J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)=44 Hz, C7), 134.04 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)=568 Hz, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)=543 Hz, C1), 129.42 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)=12 Hz, C5), 128.95 (³J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)=43 Hz, ³J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)=42 Hz, C4 or C6), 125.58 (³J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)=59 Hz, ³J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)=56 Hz, C4 or C6), 25.35 (³J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)=41 Hz, ³J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)=40 Hz, C3). ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : -357.99 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹H)= 1911 Hz)

2,4-Xylylstannane (12)¹⁰



A flask furnished with reflux condenser and a dropping funnel was charged with 15.1 ml LAHsolution (2 eq., 2M in Et₂O, 30.3 mmol) and 50 ml Et₂O. A solution of 5 g **5** (1 eq., 15.1 mmol) in 50 ml Et₂O was added slowly *via* the dropping funnel under cooling to -30°C. The reaction mixture was stirred for 2 h and allowed to warm up to room temperature. Subsequently 50 ml of oxygen free water was added. Then the phases were separated *via* a cannula and the aqueous layer washed twice with 40 ml Et₂O. The combined organic phases were extracted with 40 ml saturated sodium tartrate in oxygen free water and the resulting organic phase dried over CaCl₂. Then the solvent was evaporated gently at 200 mbar and subsequently the product was distilled at room temperature at 10⁻⁴ mbar to obtain 2.33 g **12** (7.89 mmol, 68 %) as a pale yellow liquid.

¹H-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 7.34—7.11 (d, 1H, $J_{7,8}$ =7.4 Hz ² $J(^{119}Sn^{-1}H)$ =69 Hz, ² $J(^{117}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 56 Hz, H8), 6.83-6.74 (m, 2H, H7, H4), 4.93 (s, ¹ $J(^{119}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 1898 Hz, ¹ $J(^{117}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 1814 Hz, SnH₃), 2.14 (s, 3H, H3), 2.09 (s, 3H, H6).

¹³C-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 144.17 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)=34 Hz, C5), 138.86 (C2), 138.60 (C8), 130.05 (³J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)=43 Hz, C7 or C4), 130.00 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 580 Hz, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 555 Hz, C1), 126.46 (C3), 25.35 (C3), 21.09 (C6).

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C_6D_6) δ : -352.43 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹H)= 1877 Hz)

CHN-analysis: found (C: 42.10 %, H: 5.22 %), required (C: 42.35 %, H: 5.33 %)

2,6-Xylylstannane (13)¹⁰



A flask furnished with reflux condenser and a dropping funnel was charged with 0.86 g LAH pellets (2 eq., 22.8 mmol) and 40 ml Et₂O. The suspension was stirred at room temperature until all of the LAH was dissolved. A solution of 3.76 g **6** (1 eq, 11.4 mmol) in 40 ml Et₂O was added slowly *via* the dropping funnel under cooling to -30°C. The reaction mixture was stirred for 2 h and allowed to warm up to room temperature. Subsequently 50 ml of oxygen free water was added. Then the phases were separated *via* a cannula and the aqueous layer washed twice with 40 ml Et₂O. The combined organic phases were extracted with 40 ml saturated sodium tartrate in oxygen free water and the resulting organic phase dried over CaCl₂. Then the solvent was evaporated gently at 200 mbar and subsequently the product was distilled at room temperature at 10^{-4} mbar to obtain 2.70 g **13** (11.9 mmol, 86 %) as a colorless liquid.

¹H-NMR (C₆D₆) δ: 7.01-6.09 (m, 1H, H5), 6.89-6.74 (d, 2H, $J_{4,5}$ =4.5 Hz, H4), 4.78 (s, 3H, ¹ $J(^{119}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 1896 Hz, ¹ $J(^{117}Sn^{-1}H)$ = 1812 Hz, SnH₃), 2.19 (s, 6H, C3).

¹³C-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 144.56 (³J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 30 Hz, C2), 134.97 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= 582 Hz, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= 558 Hz, C1), 129.00 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 9 Hz, C5), 126.57 (¹J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 44 Hz, C4), 26.33 (³J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 47 Hz, C3).

¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C_6D_6) δ : -417.53 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹H)= 1899 Hz)

CHN-analysis: found (C: 43.08 %, H: 5.29 %), required (C: 42.35 %, H: 5.33 %)



A flask furnished with reflux condenser and a dropping funnel was charged with 0.67 g LAH pellets (2 eq., 17.6 mmol) and 30 ml Et₂O. The suspension was stirred at room temperature until all of the LAH was dissolved. A solution of 3.10 g **8** (1 eq, 10.5 mmol) in 20 ml Et₂O was added slowly *via* the dropping funnel under cooling to -30°C. The reaction mixture was stirred for 2 h and allowed to warm up to room temperature. Subsequently 50 ml of oxygen free water was added. Then the phases were separated *via* a cannula and the aqueous layer washed twice with 40 ml Et₂O. The combined organic phases were extracted with 40 ml saturated sodium tartrate in oxygen free water and the resulting organic phase dried over CaCl₂. Then the solvent was evaporated gently at 200 mbar and subsequently the product was distilled at 10⁻⁴ mbar and slight heating (~ 50°C) to obtain 1.64 g **14** (6.59 mmol, 75 %) as a colorless liquid.

¹H-NMR (C_6D_6 , 500 MHz) δ : 7.41-7.36 (dd, 1H, ³J¹¹⁹Sn-¹H= 259 Hz, ³J¹¹⁷Sn-¹H= 245 Hz, H2), 7.31-7.25 (m, 2H, H5, H4), 7.22-7.19 (d, 1H, ¹J_{7,8}= 6.87 Hz), 6.94-6.91 (m, 2H, H6, H7), 6.86-6.81 (dd, 1H, H3), 4.84 (s, 3H, ¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹H)= 1934 Hz, ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹H)= 1849 Hz, SnH₃)

¹³C-NMR (C₆D₆) δ : 138.81 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 36 Hz, C8a), 137.88 (³J(^{11/1179}Sn-¹³C)= 39 Hz, C8), 134.07 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹³C)= n.o., ¹J(¹¹⁷Sn-¹³C)= n.o., C1), 133.75 (³J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 31 Hz, C4a), 130.41 (²J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 42 Hz, C2), 129.61 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 13 Hz, C4 or C5), 128.81 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 7 Hz, C4 or C5), 126.23 (C3), 125.64 (C6), 125.58 (⁴J(^{119/117}Sn-¹³C)= 62 Hz, C7)

CHN-analysis: found (C: 49.06 %, H: 3.98 %), required (C: 48.26 %, H: 4.05 %) ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR (C_6D_6) δ : -353.86 (¹J(¹¹⁹Sn-¹H)= 1927 Hz)

Polymerization of *o*-tolylstannane 1¹¹

0.23 g **11** (11 mmol) where mixed with 7 ml Et₂O to obtain a colorless solution which was then treated with 0.16 ml TMEDA (1 eq, 11 mmol, 0.13 g) at room temperature. The reaction mixture immediately changed its color to dark orange and the formation of hydrogen could be detected. After 45 min reaction time the solution was dark brown and reaction monitoring using a D₂O capillary did not show any signal in ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR. After another 15 min stirring, the solvent of the black reaction mixture was removed under reduced pressure, and the residual black solid extracted with 15 ml THF, to remove soluble parts. Also the supernatant THF solution was subjected to ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR , whereas no tin signal could be observed. The separated black, amorphous solid was further subjected to elemental analysis and total Sn determination *via* EDX measurements.

CHN-analysis: found (C: 29.87 %, H: 2.59 %)

Total Sn- determination via EDX: 60.04%

Polymerization of 2,4-xylylstannane 12, Temperature study¹¹

0.29 g **1** (13 mmol) where mixed with 4 ml Et₂O to obtain a colorless solution which was then treated with 0.19 ml TMEDA (1 eq., 13 mmol, 0.14 g) at -40°C. The reaction mixture immediately changed its color to slight orange and the formation of hydrogen could be observed. Subsequently six times 0.4 ml of the reaction mixture where transferred in 6 different NMR tubes, separately cooled to -30°C, -20°C, -10°C, 0°C and room temperature. Then each reaction was stirred at its specific temperature and for 1h. The reaction progress was investigated by color change of the mixture as well as ¹¹⁹Sn-NMR where run using CDCl₃ capillaries to reference the spectra.

4.4 References

¹ Blessing, R. H., Acta Crystallogr. A., **1995**, 51, 33.

² Sheldrick, G. M., SADBS, Version 2.10, Siemens Area Detector Correction, Universität Göttingen, Germany, **2003**.

³ Sheldrick, G. M., SHELXTL, Version 6.1, Bruker AXS, Inc., Madison, WI, 2002.

⁴ Sheldrick, G. M., SHELXS97 and SHELXL97, Universität Göttingen, Germany, **2002**.

⁵ Schneider, C., Dräger, M., J. Organomet. Chem., **1993**, 448, 29.

⁶ Kozeschkow, K. A., Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., **1934**, 717.

⁷ Kozeschkow, K. A., *Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges.*, **1919**, *52 B*, 717.

⁸ Janiak, C., Schwichtenberger, M., Hahn, F. E:, *J. Organomet. Chem.*, **1989**, *365*, 37.

⁹ Saito, M., Hashimoto, H., Tajima, T., Ikeda, M., J. Organomet. Chem., **2007**, 692, 2729.

¹⁰ Hermann, U. Synthese und Strukturen ketten- und ringförmiger Silicium-Zinn-

Verbindungen, 2000, PhD Thesis, Universität Dortmund.

¹¹ Lechner, M.-L., Trummer, M., Bräunlich I., Smith, P., Caseri, W., Uhlig F., *Appl. Organomet. Chem.*, **2011**, *25*, 769.

5 Appendix

5.1 Abbreviations

	Table 22: Abbreviations		
EE	ethylacetate		
ACN	acetonitrile		
av.	average		
DCM	dichloromethane		
DIBAL	diisobutylaluminium hydride		
DI-EI-TOF-MS	direct insertion electron impact ionization time of flight mass spectroscopy		
DTA	differential thermo analysis		
EDX	energy dispersive X-ray spectroscopy		
eq.	equivalent		
GC-MS	gas chromatography-mass spectroscopy		
GPC	gel permeation chromatography		
HCI	hydrochloric acid		
HRMS	high resolution mass spectroscopy		
LAH	lithium aluminum hydride		
LD50	median lethal dose		
LDA	lithium diisopropylamide		
Мр	melting point		
n. o.	not observed		
NA	not available		
OTC	organotin compound		
PTFE	polytetrafluoroethylene		
Ref	reference		
SEM	scanning electron microscopy		
R	organic residue		
S _N 2	bimolecular nucleophilic substitution		
ТВТ	tributyltin hydride		
TGA	thermogravimetric analysis		
THF	tetrahydrofuran		
TMEDA	tetramethylethylene diamine		
TMS	tetramethylsilane		
UV	ultra violet		
X	halide		

5.2 Chemical Short Names

abbreviation	fragment name	fragment structure
Ме	methyl	CH ₃
<i>i</i> -Pr	iso-propyl	- CH ₃ Ch ₃
<i>n</i> -Bu	<i>n</i> -butyl	CH3
<i>t-</i> Bu	tert-butyl	$-\frac{CH_3}{CH_3}$ CH ₃
Oct	octyl	CH3
Doc	dodecyl	- CH ₃
OMe	methoxy	OCH3
	allyl	
	vinyl	
	acryl	
Ph	phenyl	
Bz	benzyl	
<i>o</i> -Tol	ortho-tolyl	
<i>m</i> -Tol	<i>metha</i> -tolyl	
<i>p-</i> Tol	<i>para</i> -tolyl	
2,4-Xyl	2,4-xylyl	

Table 23: Chemical short names

abbreviation	fragment Name	fragment Structure
2,6-Xyl	2,6-xylyl	
3,5-Xyl	3,5-xylyl	
Mes	mesityl	
Supermes	supermesityl	tBu tBu tBu
Ph*		iPr iPr iPr
1-naph	1-naphthyl	
9-anth	9-anthracenyl	
Tos	tosylate	

Table 24: Crystallographic data for 3 and 7			
compound	C ₂₄ H ₂₇ BrSn (3)	C ₄₀ H ₂₈ Sn (7)	
Formula weight	514.06	627.31	
Temperature [K]	100(2)	100(2)	
Wavelength [Å]	0.71073	0.71073	
Crystal system	Monoclinic	Monoclinic	
Space group	P(2)1/c	P2(1)/n	
Unit cell dimensions	a = 7.9774(3) Å	a = 11.0020(3) Å	
	b = 18.6305(6) Å	b = 12.3126(4) Å	
	c = 14.5078(4) Å	c = 21.3522(6) Å	
	α= 90°	α = 90°	
	β= 94.68(10)°	β = 90.79(10)°	
	$v = 90^{\circ}$	$v = 90^{\circ}$	
Volume [ų]	2149.00(12)	2892.16(15)	
Z	4	4	
Density (calculated) [mg/m ³]	1.589	1.441	
Absorption coefficient [mm ⁻¹]	3.053	0.911	
F(000)	1024	1272	
Crystal size [mm ³]	0.20 x 0.18 x 0.17	0.14 x 0.10 x 0.05	
Theta range for data collection	1.78 to 26.77°	1.91 to 27.16°	
C C	-10≤h≤10	-13≤h≤14	
Index ranges	-23≤k≤23	-15≤k≤15	
	-18≤l≤15	-20≤l≤27	
Reflections collected	27788	64496	
Independent reflections	4448 [R(int) = 0.0300]	6390 [R(int) = 0.1505]	
Completeness to Θ= 26.77° [%]	97.3	99.5	
Absorption correction	Semi-empirical from equivalents	Semi-empirical from equivalents	
Max. and min. transmission	0.74 and 0.56	0.7455 and 0.3421	
Refinement method	Full-matrix least-squares on F2	Full-matrix least-squares on F2	
Data / restraints / parameters	4448 / 0 / 277	6390 / 0 / 358	
Goodness-of-fit on F2	1032	1035	
Final R indices [I>2a])	R1 = 0.0193,	R1 = 0.0639	
	wR2 = 0.0458	wR2 = 0.1450	
R indices (all data)	R1 = 0.0250	R1 = 0.1076	
	wR2 = 0.0481	wR2 = 0.1660	
Largest diff. peak and hole	0.416 and -0.777 e.Å⁻³	1.915 and -1.102 e.Ă⁻³	

5.3 Crystal Structure Analysis Data

compound	C ₈ H ₉ Cl₃Sn (6)	C ₁₀ H ₇ ClSn (8)
Formula weight	330.19	449.95
Temperature [K]	100(2)	100(2)
Wavelength [Å]	0.71073	0.71073
Crystal system	Orthorhombic	Orthorhombic
Space group	Pbcn	P2(1)2(1)2(1)
Unit cell dimensions	a = 8.2836(4) Å	a = 7.2140(2)
	b = 15.1421(7) Å	b = 17.8056(5)
	c = 17.9066(8) Å	c = 45.7927(13)
	a= 90°	a= 90°
	b= 90°	b= 90°
	g = 90°	g = 90°
Volume [Å ³]	2246.04(18)	5882.1(3)
Z	8	2
Density (calculated) [mg/m ³]	1.953	0.254
Absorption coefficient [mm ⁻¹]	2.936	0.262
F(000)	1264	448
Crystal size [mm ³]	0.19 x 0.17 x 0.10	0.23 x 0.17 x 0.15
Theta range for data collection	2.27 to 30.03°	0.89 to 19.83°
-	-11≤h≤11	-6≤h≤6 <i>,</i>
Index ranges	-21≤k≤20	-16≤k≤16
	-24≤l≤25	-43≤l≤43
Reflections collected	22034	131161
Independent reflections	3273 [R(int) = 0.0348]	5343 [R(int) = 0.1235]
Completeness to Θ = 26.77° [%]	99.6	100.0
Absorption correction	Semi-empirical from equivalents	Semi-empirical from equivalents
Max. and min. transmission	0.7460 and 0.5875	0.7444 and 0.4744
Refinement method	Full-matrix least-squares on F2	Full-matrix least-squares on F2
Data / restraints / parameters	3273/0/111	5343 / 0 / 631
Goodness-of-fit on F2	1.068	0.635
Final R indices [1>2al)]	R1 = 0.0265	R1 = 0.0388
	wR2 = 0.0725	wR2 = 0.1091
R indices (all data)	R1 = 0.0313	R1 = 0.0520
	WR2 = 0.0748	WR2 = 0.1299
Largest diff. peak and hole	1.281 and -1.195 e.A-3	1.278 and -0.660 e.A-3

Table 26: Crystallographic Data for 9 and 13			
compound	C ₂₈ H ₁₈ Cl ₂ Sn (9)	C ₂₄ H ₂₇ Sn (13)	
Formula weight	544.01	434.15	
Temperature [K]	100(2)	100(2)	
Wavelength [Å]	0.71073	0.71073	
Crystal system	Monoclinic	Triclinic	
Space group	P2(1)/c	P-1	
Unit cell dimensions	a = 13.6349(9) Å	a = 6.9410(4) Å	
	b = 9.3541(5) Å	b = 11.9702(7) Å	
	c = 18.0168(12) Å	c = 12.8302(8) Å	
	a= 90°.	a= 108.671(2)°.	
	b= 106.799(3)°.	b= 91.290(2)°.	
	g = 90°.	g = 95.961(2)°.	
Volume [ų]	2199.8(2)	1002.68(10)	
Z	4	2	
Density (calculated) [mg/m ³]	1.643	1.438	
Absorption coefficient [mm ⁻¹]	1.418	1.277	
F(000)	1080	442	
Crystal size [mm ³]	na	0.24 x 0.19 x 0.15	
Theta range for data collection	1.56 to 29.85°	1.81 to 26.79°	
5	-18≤h≤19	-8≤h≤8	
Index ranges	-12≤k≤13	-15≤k≤15	
	-25≤l≤24	-15≤l≤16	
Reflections collected	43268	21602	
Independent reflections	6281 [R(int) = 0.0983]	4227 [R(int) = 0.0766]	
Completeness to Θ= 26.77° [%]	99.3	98.4	
Absorption correction	Semi-empirical from equivalents	Semi-empirical from equivalents	
Max. and min. transmission	0.70 and 0.34	0.7454 and 0.3773	
Refinement method	Full-matrix least-squares on F2	Full-matrix least-squares on F2	
Data / restraints / parameters	6281 / 0 / 300	4227 / 0 / 232	
Goodness-of-fit on F2	2.736	1.094	
Final R indices [1>2al)]	R1 = 0.0912	R1 = 0.0709	
	wR2 = 0.2008	wR2 = 0.1860	
R indices (all data)	R1 = 0.0987	R1 = 0.0732	
	wR2 = 0.2025	wR2 = 0.1877	
Largest diff. peak and hole	4.303 and -2.020 e.A-3	3.369 and -1.010 e.A-3	

5.4 Indices

5.4.1 Index of Tables

Table 1: Worldwide production of tin	. 2
Table 2: Industrial applications of organotin compounds	. 3
Table 3: Selected bond lengths and angles of tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane 3	33
Table 4: Selected bond lengths and angles of trichloro-2,6-xylylstannane 6	36
Table 5: Selected bond lengths and angles of tetra-1-naphthylstannane 7	37
Table 6: Selected bond lengths and angles of trichloro-1-naphthylstannane 8	38
Table 7: Found and calculated C,H values [%] for anthracenyl derivatives	42
Table 8: Selected Bond lengths and angles of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane 9	46
Table 9: selected bond lengths and angles of tri-2,6-xylylstannane 10	48
Table 10: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar $_4$ Sn	49
Table 11: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar_3SnX	49
Table 12: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar_3SnX	50
Table 13: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for Ar ₂ SnCl ₂	51
Table 14: Comparison of selected bond lengths and angles for aryltin hydrides	51
Table 15: Yields for all synthesized trihydrido arylstannanes	52
Table 16: Elemental analysis (C,H) and EDX (Sn) measurements of the polymerization product	53
Table 17: ¹¹⁹ Sn-NMR Data (ppm) for Ar ₄ Sn, Ar ₃ SnCl, Ar ₃ SnBr, ArSnCl ₃ and RSnH ₃ in CDCl ₃	55
Table 18: Coupling Constants Overview	56
Table 19: Used chemicals and commercial sources	60
Table 20: frequencies of observed nuclei (300 MHz spectrometer)	60
Table 21: Frequencies of observed nuclei (500 MHz spectrometer)	61
Table 22: Abbreviations	82
Table 23: Chemical short names 8	83
Table 24: Crystallographic data for 3 and 7	85
Table 25: Crystallographic data for 6 and 8	86
Table 26: Crystallographic Data for 9 and 13 8	87

5.4.2 Index of Schemes

Scheme 1: Preparation of metallic tin from cassiterite	2
Scheme 2: Synthesis of the first organo stannane (direct method)	5
Scheme 3: First indirect method synthesizing tetraalkyl stannanes	5
Scheme 4: Improvement of the indirect route by Frankland	6
Scheme 5: Grignard Reaction generating tetra organostannanes	6
Scheme 6: Wurtz-type coupling generating tetraalkyl organostannanes	7
Scheme 7: Preparation of tetraorgano stannanes using diorgano zinc reagents	7
Scheme 8: Preparation of tetraorgano stannanes using triorgano aluminium reagents	7
Scheme 9: Generating R_4 Sn by reduction of the dichloride with a metal	8
Scheme 11: Nucleophilic attack of a deprotonated tin species generating tetraorgano stannanes	8
Scheme 12: Displacement of a halide with Me ₃ SnLi under full inversion	8
Scheme 13: Displacement of a tosylate with Me ₃ SnLi under full inversion	8
Scheme 16: Ulmann coupling using copper bronze generating tetraaryl stannanes	9
Scheme 17: Overall reaction sequence for the Kozeschkow redistribution reaction generating RSnX	(₃ 9
Scheme 18: Kozeschkow redistribution reaction proceeding in three steps	. 10
Scheme 19: Preparation of monoalkyl tinhalides via Kozeschkow redistribution reaction	. 10
Scheme 20: Preparation of MeSnCl ₃ using SbCl ₅	. 10
Scheme 21: Monoalkylation of tin(IV) chloride using R ₃ Al complexes	. 11
Scheme 22: Preparation of RSnX ₃ <i>via</i> oxidative addition	. 11
Scheme 23: Synthesis of ArSnCl ₃ on the Grignard route <i>via</i> ArSnMe ₃ as an intermediate	. 11
Scheme 24: Oxidative addition of tin(II) chloride in the presence of iodide and magnesium	. 12
Scheme 25: Selective cleavage of a Si-C bond with SnCl₄	. 12
Scheme 26: Generating ArSnCl₃ via a tin(II) intermediate	. 12
Scheme 27: First synthesis of organotin hydrides by Kraus and Greer	. 13
Scheme 28: General route synthesizing organotin hydrides with LAH	. 13
Scheme 29: Preparation of organotin hydrides using dialkylaluminium hydrides	. 14
Scheme 30: Synthesis of organotin hydrides via reduction of diethylamino stannanes	. 14
Scheme 31: Hydrolysis of triphenylmagnesium resulting in Ph₃SnH	. 14
Scheme 32: Generating organotin hydrides by reduction of organotin methoxides with diborane	. 15
Scheme 33: Decomposition of organotin hydrides	. 15
Scheme 34: Reaction of organotin hydrides with oxygen	. 15
Scheme 35: Wurtz-type coupling for the preparation of polystannanes	. 17
Scheme 36: Electrochemical synthesis for polystannanes	. 18

Scheme 37: Catalytic dehydropolymerization generating polystannanes	19
Scheme 38: Dehydrogenative coupling using an amine base	19
Scheme 39: Polar transitions state in dehydrogenative coupling	20
Scheme 40: Preparation of tetra-o-tolylstannane 1	30
Scheme 41: Preparation of tetra-2,4-xylylstannane 2	31
Scheme 42: Preparation of tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane 3	32
Scheme 43: Kozeschkow redistribution reaction synthesizing aryltrichloro stannanes	34
Scheme 44: Preparation of tetra-1-naphthylstannane 7 and trichloro-1-naphthylstannane 8	36
Scheme 45: Lithiation Route for the synthesis of trichloro-9-anthracenylstannane	39
Scheme 46: Grignard route for the synthesis of 9-anthracenyl derivatives	40
Scheme 47: Oxidative addition of SnCl $_2$ on 9-bromoanthracene	40
Scheme 48: Attempts towards the formation of trichloro-9-anthracene via an activated Sn(II)	
intermediate	41
Scheme 50: Preparation of tri-2,6-xylylstannane	47
Scheme 51: Hydrogenation of aryltrichlorostannanes resulting in aryltin trihydrides	52
Scheme 52: Polymerization of aryltrihydrido stannanes in the presence of TMEDA	53

5.4.3 Index of Figures

Figure 1: Distribution and fate of OTC as pollutants in the aquatic environment ⁸	5
Figure 2: Synthetic scope	29
Figure 3: Crystal structure of tris-(2,6-xylyl)bromostannane 3. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30%	
shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity	33
Figure 4: Crystal structure of trichloro-2,6-xylylstannane 6. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30%	
shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity	35
Figure 5: Crystal structure of tetra-1-naphthylstannane 7. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30%	
shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity	37
Figure 6: Crystal structure of trichloro-1-naphthylstannane 8. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30%	
shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity	38
Figure 7: DTA and TGA of the anthracenyl derivative	42
Figure 8: M/z fragmentation of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane (DI-EI-TOF)	43
Figure 9: 1. Theoretical isotope pattern of M^+ 2. Experimental isotope pattern of M^+	44
Figure 10: ¹¹⁹ Sn-NMRs (CDCl ₃) from the temperature dependency study of the lithiation route	45

Figure 11: Crystal structure of dichloro-(bis-9-anthracenyl)stannane 9. All non-carbon atoms shown	1
as 30% shaded ellipsoids. Hydrogen atoms removed for clarity.	46
Figure 12: Crystal structure of tri-2,6-xylylstannane 10. All non-carbon atoms shown as 30% shaded	I
ellipsoids. Not relevant hydrogen atoms removed for clarity.	48
Figure 13: IUPAC numbering of naphthyl and anthracenyl substituents	62



Senat

Deutsche Fassung:

Beschluss der Curricula-Kommission für Bachelor-, Master- und Diplomstudien vom 10.11.2008

Genehmigung des Senates am 1.12.2008

EIDESSTATTLICHE ERKLÄRUNG

Ich erkläre an Eides statt, dass ich die vorliegende Arbeit selbstständig verfasst, andere als die angegebenen Quellen/Hilfsmittel nicht benutzt, und die den benutzten Quellen wörtlich und inhaltlich entnommene Stellen als solche kenntlich gemacht habe.

Graz, am

(Unterschrift)

Englische Fassung:

STATUTORY DECLARATION

I declare that I have authored this thesis independently, that I have not used other than the declared sources / resources, and that I have explicitly marked all material which has been quoted either literally or by content from the used sources.

.....date

.....(signature)